
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA  94604-2688 

 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

March 14, 2019 
9:00 a.m. 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, March 14, 2019.  
This meeting shall consist of a simultaneous teleconference all at the following locations. 

 
BART Board Room 
Kaiser Center 20th Street Mall – Third Floor 
2040 Webster Street  
Oakland, CA  94612 

Akonadi Foundation 
436 14th Street, Suite 1417 
Oakland, CA 94612 
 
 
 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.  
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board.  If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 
 
Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 
 
Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 
 
Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 
 
BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters.  A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.  Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 
 
Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 
 
Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary.  Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 
hours in advance of the meeting.  
 
Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA  94612; fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 
 
       Patricia K. Williams 

District Secretary 

https://maps.google.com/?q=436+14th+Street,+Suite+1417+Oakland,+CA+94612&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=436+14th+Street,+Suite+1417+Oakland,+CA+94612&entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART_1904
mailto:BoardofDirectors@bart.gov


    
 

* Attachment available  2 of 3  

Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  

 A. Roll Call.   
 B. Pledge of Allegiance.   
 C. Introduction of Special Guests.   
 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR   
    
 A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 28, 2019.*  Board 

requested to authorize. 
 

  

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.  An additional period for Public Comment is provided at 
the end of the Meeting.) 

  

 
4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 

Director Simon, Chairperson 
 

  

 A. Agreement with Salesforce, Inc., for the Salesforce Email Studio for the  
District’s Existing Enterprise Licensing Agreement.*  
Board requested to authorize. 
 

5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Foley, Chairperson 
 

 A. Award of Contract No. 15LK-120A, Market Street Escalators Renovation  
Project.*  Board requested to authorize. 

 

  
 

 B. BART Safety, Reliability, and Traffic Relief Program (Measure RR): 
Equity Program and Small Business Update.*  For information. 
 

  

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Raburn, Chairperson 
 

 A. (CONTINUED from February 28, 2019, Board Meeting)  
Surveillance Technology Approvals - BART Research Methodologies.*   
a. Surveillance Use Policy. 
b. Surveillance Impact Report. 
Board requested to authorize. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



    
 

* Attachment available  3 of 3  

 B. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Update.*    
a.          CASA (Committee to House the Bay Area) 
b.          Plan Bay Area 2050 
For information.  

 

  

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

  

 A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative, 
and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

  

 
8. CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
  

 A. Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Ending 
December 31, 2018.*  For information. 

 . 

 
9. INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
  

 A. Quarterly Report of the Independent Police Auditor.  For information.   
 

10. BOARD MATTERS 
 

  

 A. Board Member Reports.   
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are available 
through the Office of the District Secretary.  An opportunity for Board members to report 
on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.) 
 

  

 B. Roll Call for Introductions.   
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

  

 
 C. In Memoriam. 

(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 
  

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under their 
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

  

 
 12. CLOSED SESSION  (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 

 
 

 A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT: 
Title: Inspector General 
Government Code Section:  54957(b)(1) 
 

13. OPEN SESSION   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,833rd Meeting 

February 28, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 28, 2019, convening at 9:00 a.m. 
in the Board,Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. Vice-President Saltzman 
presided; Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and 
Saltzman. 

President Dufty. 

Vice-President Saltzman called for Introduction of Special Guests. Director McPartland 
recognized Rick Pisio who addressed the Board. 

Director Allen exited the meeting. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 14, 2019. 

2. Employee Relocation Assistance for the Chief Planning, Development and 
Construction Officer and Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 

3. District Base Pay Schedule. 

4. Resolution Authorizing Execution of BART to Antioch Extension 
Application for the Fiscal Year 2019 Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (LCTOP). 

5. Lease Extension with 191h and Broadway LLC, for the 191h Street Bike 
Station. 

Director Simon made the following motions as a unit. Director Raburn seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 7: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, 
Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent - 2: Directors Allen and Dufty. 

I. That the Minutes of the Meeting of February 14, 2019, be approved. 

2. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to approve 
employee relocation assistance in accordance with Management Procedure 
Number 70, New Employee Relocation Expense Reimbursement, for the 

-1-



DRAFT 

following two positions: Chief Planning, Development and Construction 
Officer; and Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 

3. That the Board approves the base pay schedule in effect January 1, 2019. 
The base pay schedule is attached and hereby made a part of these 
Minutes. 

4. Adoption of Resolution No. 5395 , In the Matter of Authorizing the 
Execution of a Project Application for FY 2019-2020 Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Funding of BART to Antioch Extension. 

5. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized to enter into a 
lease extension with 19th and Broadway LLC for commercial space at 
1773/1775 Broadway for a three-year term for the 19th Street Bike Station. 

Consent Calendar report brought before the Board was: 

1. Fiscal Year 2019 First Quarter Financial Report. 

Director Allen re-entered the meeting. 

Vice-President Saltzman called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the 
Board: 
Jason Bezis 
Aaron Eckhause 

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Financial 
Outlook for Fiscal Year 2020 before the Board. Ms. Pamela Herhold, Assistant General 
Manager, Performance and Budgets; Mr. Michael Eiseman, Department Manager Financial 
Services; and Ms. Kate Jordan Steiner, Department Manager Budgets, presented the item. The 
item was discussed. 

Jason Bezis addressed the Board. 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 
Agreements for Professional Services for BART Projects before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen, 
Assistant General Manager, Operations; Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Planning, 
Development and Construction; and Mr. Maceo Wiggins, Department, Manager, Office of Civil 
Rights, presented the item. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 
John Fisher 
Charissa Frank 
Greg Oslund 
Jason Bezis 

The item was discussed. 

-2-



DRAFT 

Vice-President Saltzman made the following motion. 

That the General Manager be authorized to award the below listed Agreements to provide 
Architectural and General Engineering Services for BART Projects in an amount not to 
exceed $40,000,000 each, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager. 
Pursuant to the District's protest procedures and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
requirements related to protests. 

1. 6M8142 to AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 

2. 6M8143 to HOR Engineering, Inc. , Walnut Creek, CA 

3. 6M8144 to HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 

4. 6M8145 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 

5. 6M8146 to Parsons Transportation Group, Inc. , Oakland, CA 

6. 6M8147 to PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 

7. 6M8148 to T.Y. Lin International/Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint 
Venture, Oakland, CA 

8. 6M8149 to WSP USA Inc. , San Francisco, CA 

Director Simon seconded the motion. 

Director Allen requested an amendment to include a report on the last round of agreements and 
how funds were spent and in what amounts. The amendment also included a request for staff to 
submit regular progress reports to the Board every six (6) months. 

Directors Saltzman and Simon accepted the amendment, and the motion carried by electronic 
vote. Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Foley, Li , McPartland, Raburn, Simon and Saltzman. Noes -
1: Director Ames. Absent - 1: President Dufty. 

Vice-President Saltzman announced that agenda items would be taken out of order, and brought 
the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee before the Board. 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 
Committee, announced that Item 6-A, Surveillance Technology Approvals, would be continued 
to a future Board Meeting. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of State Legislation for Consideration before the Board and 
announced that Senate Bill 50 - Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable 
communities' incentive, would be voted on at a future Board Meeting. Mr. Holmes; Mr. 
Roddrick Lee, Department Manager of Government and Community Relations; and Ms. Amanda 
Cruz, Legislative Program Manager, presented the item. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 
Jason Bezis 
Aaron Eckhause 

,., 
-.)-



Kevin Burke 
Corey Smith 
Gerald Cauthen 
The item was discussed. 

DRAFT 

Ms. Cruz presented Assembly Constitutional Amendment 1 - Local government financing: 
affordable housing and public infrastructure (ACA 1), and Senate Bill 42 - Getting Home Safe 
Act (SB42). 

Jason Bezis addressed the Board. 

Vice-President Saltzman moved that the Board of Directors support ACAl and SB42. Director 
Allen seconded the motion for support of SB42. 

Discussion continued. 

Director Raburn made a substitute motion to watch ACA 1 and request the author to amend the 
bill to adopt the urban land institute criteria. Director McPartland seconded the substitute 
motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 6: Directors Allen, Foley, Li, McPartland, 
Raburn, and Simon. Noes - I: Director Saltzman. Abstain - 1. Director Ames. Absent - 1: 
President Dufty. 

Vice-President Saltzman moved that the Board of Directors support SB42. Director Allen 
seconded the motion which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, 
Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: President 
Dufty. 

Director McPartland exited the meeting. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Amendment No. 10 to Lease at 300 Lakeside Drive, 
Oakland with SIC-Lakeside Drive, LLC before the Board. Mr. Holmes; Mr. Sean Brooks, 
Department Manager, Real Estate and Property Development; and Mr. Thomas Dunscombe, 
Group Manager, Capital Projects, presented the item. The item was discussed. 

Jason Bezis addressed the Board. 

Director Raburn moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to execute 
Amendment No. 10 to the Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive in Oakland with SIC-Lakeside Drive 
LLC, consistent with the terms contained in the SIC' s proposal dated December 13, 2018. 
Director Simon seconded the motion which carried by unanimous electronic vote. 
Ayes - 7: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent -
2: Directors Dufty and McParland. 

Director McPartland re-entered the meeting. 

Director Foley brought the matter of Quarterly Performance Report, Second Quarter Fiscal Year 
2019 - Service Performance Review, before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen; and Deputy Police 
Chief, Lance Haight, presented the item. 

-4-



DRAFT 

Jason Bezis addressed the Board. 

The item was discussed. 

Vice-President Saltzman called for the General Manager's Report. 

Deputy General Manager Robert Powers introduced Ms. Allen; Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior 
Planner; and Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs. Ms. Russell 
reported on addressing customer concerns in the first thirteen days of the Early Bird Express 
service. Mr. Powers introduced Mr. Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager, Administration, 
who reported on BART's Leadership Program. Mr. Powers reported on steps the General 
Manager had taken, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items. 

Vice-President Saltzman called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 
Memoriam. 

Director Li reported she had toured the Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC) and participated 
in the San Francisco Chinese New Year Parade with Directors Foley and Raburn, and attended 
the Women's Transportation Seminar. 

Director Li requested on behalf of herself and Director Simon that the meeting be adjourned in 
memory of San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi. 

Director Simon spoke about Jeff Adachi and his commitment to his job and community within 
San Francisco. 

Director Ames reported she had attended meetings in Sacramento with State legislators and the 
2019 State of the Valley Conference in Silicon Valley. 

Director Raburn reported he had attended the Planning and Conservation League Session on 
Transportation in Sacramento and meetings with State legislators. 

Director Foley reported he had attended the San Francisco Chinese New Year Parade, the 
Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority Board, a Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
Board Meeting, an Antioch City Council Meeting, and Lift Up Contra Costa. 

Director McParland reported he had attended a Homeland Defense Meeting, and a Tri Valley 
San Joaquin Regional Rail Authority meeting. 

Director Allen reported she had attended the Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority 
Board, the Walnut Creek State of the City Meeting, the San Ramon State of the City Meeting, 
the Martinez State of the City breakfast, and a Contra Costa Transportation Authority Meeting, 
and had given a presentation to the Contra Costa Tax-Payers Association. 

Director Allen requested that staff come back to the Board in the next 60 days with a plan of how 
to quantify the fare evasion rate, with a goal of adding a true estimated numeric value on future 

-5-



DRAFT 

Quarterly Performance Reports-Service Performance Reviews (QPR-QSP), beginning with 
QPR-QSP period starting July I, 2019. Directors Ames and McPartland seconded the request. 

Vice-President Saltzman reported she had attended meetings in Sacramento with State 
legislators. 

Vice-President Saltzman called for Public Comment: 

Jason Bezis addressed the Board. 

The Meeting was adjourned at I :02 p.m. in memory of Jeff Adachi. 

-6-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 
ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
-1- QC208 Access Coordinator AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
2 FA200 Account Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 011 $43,523.58 $56,893.82 
3 FA205 Accountant SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 

-4- FA210 Accounting Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
5 000070 Accounting Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
6 FA215 Accounting Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
7 OFOSO ACTO Central Control Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
8 OF075 ACTO Service Delivery Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
9 AE200 Administrative Analyst - BPOA BART Police Officers Association 058 $76,549.41 $91,855.09 
10 AF200 Administrative Analyst NR Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
11 AA200 Administrative Analyst SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
12 AF101 Administrative Secretary - NR Non-Represented Employees 071 $62,027.47 $73,535.90 
13 AGlOO Administrative Secretary SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 071 $56,254.85 $73,535.90 
14 AA230 Administrative Support Officer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S13 $89,529.72 $117,032.28 
15 CB190 Administrative Technician ATU ATU, Local 1555 036 $64,942.18 $76,402.56 
16 CF190 Administrative Technician NR Non-Represented Employees 036 $64,422.59 $76,402.56 
17 CA190 Administrative Technician SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
18 MAlOO AFC Electronic Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
19 MAlOS AFC Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
20 MA560 AFC Parts Runner SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 151 $52,838.45 $69,069.94 
21 IAlOO Appl Programmer Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
22 000046 Architect Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
23 000051 Asset Coordinator AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
24 000178 Asset Data Manager AFSCME, Local3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
25 LFlOO Associate General Counsel Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
26 AAlOO Asst Admin Analyst - SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
27 AFlOO Asst Admin Analyst NR Non-Represented Employees NOl $67,485.00 $104,605.00 
28 UA200 Asst Buyer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
29 000153 Asst Chief Info Officer Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
30 000083 Asst Chief Labor Relations Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
31 000086 Asst Chief Maint & Eng Officer Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
32 000082 Asst Chief Mechanical Officer Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
33 UA205 Asst Contract Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
34 FF225 Asst Controller Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
35 AFlOS Asst District Secretary Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
36 ZFOSO Asst GM Administration* Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
37 ZFlOS Asst GM Operations* Non-Represented Employees Nl4 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
38 ZF118 Asst GM PD&C* Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
39 XF213 Asst GM Performance & Budget* Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
40 XF125 Asst GM Technology7CIO* Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
41 ZF117 Asst GM, External Affairs* Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
42 000019 Asst Logistics Program Manager AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
43 FC230 Asst Mgr of Revenue Control AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
44 MF822 Asst Rolling Stock Maint Super Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
45 SAlOO Asst Safety Specialist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
46 000091 Asst Superintendent Ops eBART Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
47 000061 Asst Superintendent PwrMec Mnt Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
48 MF830 Asst Superintendent Sys Mnt Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
49 000150 Asst Superintendent SysT eBART Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 

so 000163 Asst Superintendent System Svc Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

51 000090 Asst Superintendent VM eBART Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 

52 000020 Asst Superintendent Way & Fae Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

53 FF230 Asst Treasurer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 

54 FA274 Asst Treasury Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 

SS 000058 Attendance Program Coordinator Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

56 LFlOS Attorney I Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

57 LFllO Attorney II Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 

58 LFllS Attorney Ill Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

59 MA200 Auto & Equip Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

Page 1 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary M inimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
-60~C-215 Auto & Equip MaintSupv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE - $"96,218.14 $125,083.27 
61 MA205 Auto & Equip Mechanic SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
62 FAlOO Budget Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 508 $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
63 FB141 Budget Clerk -ATU ATU, Local 1555 031 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 
64 MA300 Buildings Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
65 MA310 Buildings Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
66 UA210 Buyer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional chapter 508 $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
67 OA213 Buyer Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
68 TA298 CAD Drafter SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 508 $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
69 FA245 Cash Handler SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 025 $51,452.34 $67,258.05 
70 000095 Cash Handler PT SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 026 $56,597.42 $56,597.42 
71 FA249 Cash Handling Eiec Technician SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
72 FA250 Cash Handling Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 813 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
73 TC220 Central Maintenance Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
74 TF275 Central Veh Trouble Desk Super Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
75 000084 Chief Labor Relations Officer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
76 EFOSO Chief Maint & Engineer Officer Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
77 MF805 Chief Mechanical Officer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
78 000094 Chief Op Officer eBART/ OAC Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
79 XF126 Chief Performance Audit Offer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
80 XF135 Chief Procurement Officer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
SI SF200 Chief Safety Officer Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
82 000050 Chief Transit Sys Dev Officer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
83 XFlOO Chief Transportation Officer Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
84 EF200 Civil Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
85 CFlOO Clerk NR]PT Non-Represented Employees 010 $52,892.94 $62,510.66 
86 CGlOO Clerk SEIU SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 011 $43,523.58 $56,893.82 
87 000013 Communication Coordinator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
88 MAllS Communications Electronic Tech SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
89 MA120 Communications Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
90 VFlOl Communications Officer Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
91 08100 Communications Specialist ATU, Local 1555 831 $88,830.77 $104,506.90 
92 000074 Community Outreach Specialist Non-Represented Employees N08 $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
93 PE076 Community Services Officer BART Police Officers Association 027 $54,191.90 $66,560.21 
94 000155 Comp Vehicle Maint eBART SEIU Maintenance eBART 400 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
95 IAlOS Computer Documentation Asst SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
96 MA700 Computer Electronic Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 321 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
97 IAllO Computer Operator SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
98 000064 Computer Support Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $60,777.12 $79,447.20 
99 IA115 Computer Support Coordinator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional chapter 514 $93,978.36 $122,847.48 
100 EF102 Computer Systems Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
101 EF205 Construction Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
102 UA215 Contract Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 508 $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
103 UF221 Contract Specialist I Non-Represented Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 
Io4 UF222 Contract Specialist II Non-Represented Employees N03 $78,124.00 $121,095.00 
105 UF223 Contract Specialist Ill Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
106 000049 Contracts Technician SEIU SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
107 XFlOS Controller Treasurer Board Appointed Officer CT $264,735.35 $264,735.35 
108 000168 Crew Office Supervisor AFSCME, Local3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
109 000183 Crime Analyst BART Police Officers Association 068 $78,080.08 $93,691.94 
HO CA120 Customer Service Clerk SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
111 VAllO Customer Service Rep SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
1I2 VA120 Customer Services Admin SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 513 $89,529.72 $117,032.28 
113 000016 Customer Services Assistant SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 506 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
114 000173 Customer Services Supervisor SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 513 $89,529.72 $117,032.28 
115 000180 Customer Services Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
116 000071 Cyber Security Architect Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
117 000072 Cyber Security Engineer Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
118 IA135 Data Controller SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 

Page 2 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 
As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code JobTitle Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 

119 IA140 Data Entry Operator SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
120 IC120 Database Administrator AFSCME, Local3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
121 XF142 Dept Mgr Communication Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
122 QF101 Dept Mgr Customer Access Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

123 XF117 Dept Mgr Customer Service Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
124 FF090 Dept Mgr Financial Services Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

125 XF123 Dept Mgr Gov't & Comm Rei Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
126 XF120 Dept Mgr Human Resources Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

127 XF132 Dept Mgr Marketing & Research Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

128 XFllS Dept Mgr Office of Civil Right Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

129 XF040 Dept Mgr Operations Planning Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

130 000027 Dept Mgr Prope Development Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

131 XF106 Dept Mgr Risk Management Non-Represented Employees NlO 121,196.00 187,856.00 
132 FF095 Dept Mgr, Budget Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

133 AFllS Deputy Asst District Secretary Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
134 ZFllO Deputy General Manager* Non-Represented Employees NlS $188,013.00 $291,424.00 

135 000028 Deputy Managing Dir Cap Cor Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

136 000043 Deputy Police Chief Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 

137 000156 Diesel Train DMU Eng eBART ATU eBART 651 $77,903.07 $89,415.46 

138 EF060 District Architect Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

139 QC216 District Right of Way Surveyor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 

140 XFlSO District Secretary Board Appointed Officer DS $203,339.85 $208,424.00 

141 MF410 Division Manager Maint Support Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

142 TA300 Document Config Controller SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 509 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

143 000161 Document Control Spee eBART SEIU Professional eBART 500 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

144 TA310 Drafting Supervisor SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 

145 HF108 Drug Testing Coordinator Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
146 MA313 Dump Truck/ Equipment Operator SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

147 000078 Elec7Electro-Mech Assembler II SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 152 $54,783.46 $71,612.53 

148 MA145 Elect/ Electro-Mech Assembler SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 151 $52,838.45 $69,069.94 

149 EF215 Electrical Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

150 MASOO Electrical Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 824 $80,535.52 $105,275.25 

151 000034 Electrical Helper SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 151 $52,838.45 $69,069.94 

152 MASlO Electrician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

153 EFllO Electronics & Comm Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
154 MASlS Elevator/Escalator Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

155 MAS30 Elevator/Escalator Trainee SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 331 $63,237.62 $82,663.57 

156 MAS25 Elevator/Escalator Worker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

157 HBlOS Employee Dev Specialist ATU ATU, Local 1555 839 $93,241.41 $109,695.87 

158 HJlOS Employee Dev Specialist SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter EDS $83,917.92 $109,696.56 

159 EFSOO Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

160 000026 Engineer (Mechanical Focus) Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

161 000032 Engineer Intern Non-Represented Employees 081 $37,440.00 $37,440.00 

162 000073 Enterprise Security Suppt Spee Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 

163 SF145 Environmental Administrator AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 

164 000006 Environmental Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

165 MAlSO ERS Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

166 MAlSS ERS Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

167 UA195 Expediter SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 506 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 

168 UAlOO Expediter/Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 

169 MC350 Facilities Maint Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 

170 000021 Facilities/ Utilities Loe Coard AFSCME, Local3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

171 000182 Fare Inspection Officer BART Police Officers Association 035 $64,522.43 $77,423.42 

172 MASSO Fire Protection Worker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

173 MA330 Fire Service Worker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

174 XF160 General Counsel Board Appointed Officer GC $292,703.05 $292,703.05 

175 ZF130 General Manager Board Appointed Officer GM $395,024.09 $395,024.09 

176 VAOSO Gov & Community Relations Spee SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 

177 TA313 Graphic Artist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 509 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

Page 3 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job ntle) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 
# Job Code Jobntle Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
-l 78MA335 ___ GroundsForeworker SEIU, Loca l 1021:-:clericai-& Maintenance 825 Sn,166.34 $100,871.06 
179 MA345 Grounas Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 201 Ss9,611.11 $77,930.94 
180 MA346 Grounas Worker7Applicator SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 S10,201.66 $91,767.10 
181 000017 Group Manager Non-Represented Employees NlO S121,196.oo S1s1,ss6.oo 
182 000041 Group Mgr Capital Projects Non-Represented Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
183 E~I13 Grp Mgr AFC Capital Program Non-Representea Employees Nl2 SB3,622.oo $207,114.00 
184 EF122 Grp Mgr Capital Program Non-Representea Employees NI2 SB3,622.oo $207,114.00 
185 KF300 Grp Mgr Capitol Corriaor Non-Representea Employees Nl2 SB3,622.oo $207,114.00 
186 EF223 Grp Mgr Elec Medi Engineering Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
187 EF222 Grp Mgr Engineering Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
188EF224 Grp Mgr Engineering Liaison Non-Representea Employees Nl2 SB3,622.oo $207,114.00 
189 OF42E> Grp Mgr Operations Liaison Non-Representea Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
190 OF112 Grp Mgr Ops Support & Review Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
191 XF128 Grp Mgr Planning Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
192 000171 Grp Mgr Proauction Support Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
19~ EF121 Grp Mgr Project Controls Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
194 EFI07 Grp Mgr Rail Veliicle Cap Prog f.Jon-Representea Employees Nl2 S133,622.oo $207,114.00 
195 MF807 Grp Mgr Rolling Stock & Sliops Non-Representea Employees Nl2 SB3,622.oo $207,114.00 
196 EF124 Grp Mgr Seismic Retrorit Cap Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
197 000088 Grp Mgr Sustaina!iility Program Non-Representea Employees Nl 2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
198 EF080 Grp Mgr Systems Engineer Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
1~9 EF'ei75 Grp Mgr VeliicleMaint Engineer Non-Representea Employees Nl2 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
200 oocloGi RR Division Manager Non-Representea Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
201 HF090 HR Receptionist Non-Representea Employees 021 $55,027.02 $65,185.33 
202 000042 lnaepenaent Police Auaitor Boara Appointea Officer IPA $199,363.72 $199,363.72 
2cl3 1laoi'ls4 lnaepenoent Police Invest Non-Representea Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
204 SC132 lnaustrial Hygienist AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
205 l<'.]59 Information Sys Security Offer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
206 IF129 Information Systems Analyst I Non-Represented Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 
207 IF130 Information Systems Analyst II Non-Representea Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
208 FF260 Information Systems Auditor Non-Representeo Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
209 OF025 Instructional Design Spee Non-Representea Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
210 FC240 Insurance Analyst AFSCME, Local3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
211 FA265 lntermeoiate Account Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 021 $49,866.75 $65,185.33 
212 CFlOS Intermediate Clerk NR Non-Representea Employees 021 $55,027.02 $65,185.33 
213 l:PlOS lntermeaiate Clerk NR 7 PT Non-Representeo Employees 020 $60,456.86 $71,631.04 
214 BH!5 lntermeoiate l:lerk SEIO SEIU, [ocal l i'l21 - <'.'.lerkal R;: Maintenance 021 $49,866.75 $65,185.33 
215 FF251 Internal Auaitor I Non-Representea Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 
2Hi FF252 Internal Auaitor II Non-Representea Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
217 UAI05 Inventory Control Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cliapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
218 UA120 Inventory Control Tedinician SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
219 MA348 lrrigation7Grounds Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
220 000059 IT Project Manager AFSCME, Local3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
221 IA160 Jr Appl Programmer Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cliapter S03 $55,178.40 $72,128~ 
222 FA275 Junior Accountant SEIU, Local 1021- ProFessional Cliapter SOS $60,777.12 $79,447.20 
223 EF400 Junior Engineer Non-Representeo Employees N03 $78,124.00 $121,095.00 
224 HF122 La!ior Relations Rep I Non-Representea Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 
225 HF123 La!ior Relations Rep II Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
226 000165 Leave Management Analyst Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
227 CA11s Legal Aaministrative Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
228 LAlOO Legal Aoministrative Asst SEIU, Local 1021- ProFessional Cliapter SOS $60,777.12 $79,447.20 
229 LC118 Legal Office Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 
230 F<'.:282 Lia!iility Risk Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
231 MA350 Locksmitli SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
232 06108 Lost & Founa Clerk ATU, Local 1555 019 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 
233 CAHO Mail and Supply Clerk SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 021 $49,866.75 $65,185.33 
234 000060 Maintenance Engineer Non-Representea Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
235 TA215 Maintenance Planner SEIU, Local 1021- ProFessional Cliapter SOB $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
236 000001 Maintenance Support Aamin AFSCME, Loca l 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 

Page 4 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 
ATIACHMENTA 

Salary M inimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
237 000159 Manager of Maintenance Planng Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
238 000077 Manager of Special Projects Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
239 000172 Manager of Technology Programs Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
240 FC205 Manager of Time and Admin AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
241 000063 Manager, Engineering liaison Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
242 ZF200 Managing Director Cap Corridor• Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
243 VC081 Marketing Rep II AFSCME, local 3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
244 PE132 Master Police Officer BART Police Officers Association 798 $112,411.10 $112,411.10 
245 UA130 Material Control Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
246 UA135 Material Control Sys Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
247 UA145 Material Coordinator SEIU, local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
248 UA150 Material Expeditor SEIU, local 1021- Professional Chapter SOS $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
249 EF240 Mechanical Engineer Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
250 HF151 Media Producer Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
251 000023 Mgr of Access Programs AFSCME, local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
252 000024 Mgr of Access/ Accessibility Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
253 FC215 Mgr of Accounting AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
254 000081 Mgr of Accred Police Services Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
255 000167 Mgr of Ad Franchise Program AFSCME, Local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
256 MC225 Mgr of Auto & Equip Maint AFSCME, local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
257 FF119 Mgr of Capital Budgets Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
258 FF116 Mgr of Capital Project Control Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
259 000174 Mgr of Capital Project Support AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
260 OF115 Mgr of Central Control Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
261 EF225 Mgr of Civil & Structural Eng Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
262 000008 Mgr of Communications Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
263 QF109 Mgr of Community Relations Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
264 EF119 Mgr of Computer Sys Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
265 MF400 Mgr of Construction Services Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
266 UF225 Mgr of Contract Administration Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
267 000170 Mgr of Creative Services AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
268 000009 Mgr of Credit/ Debit Fare Prog AFSCME, local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
269 AC400 Mgr of Customer Services AFSCME, l ocal 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
270 TC102 Mgr of Drafting & Configuratio AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
271 EF120 Mgr of Elect & Comm Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
272 EF233 Mgr of Electrical Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
273 000065 Mgr of Emergency Preparedness Non-Represented Employees N08 $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
274 SC075 Mgr of Employee/Patron Safety AFSCME, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
275 SFlll Mgr of Engineer Safety Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
276 000169 Mgr of Engineering Programs Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
277 SF140 Mgr of Environ Compliance Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
278 FF297 Mgr of Financial Planning Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
279 FF290 Mgr of Fleet & Capacity Plann Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
280 FF117 Mgr of Grant Dev & Reporting Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
281 IF177 Mgr of Information Systems Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
282 FF285 Mgr of Internal Audit Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
283 UC125 Mgr of Inventory Management AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
284 HF130 Mgr of Labor Relations Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
285 QF107 Mgr of Local Govt & Com Rei Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
286 UF130 Mgr of logistics Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
287 MF405 Mgr of Maint Administration Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
288 TF241 Mgr of Maintenance Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
289 AF206 Mgr of Management Analysis Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
290 EF234 Mgr of Mechanical Engr. Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
291 FF125 Mgr of Operating Budgets Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
292 OF425 Mgr of Operations liaison Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
293 SC105 Mgr of Operations Safety AFSCME, local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
294 000055 Mgr of Ops Training and Dev Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
295 QF115 Mgr of Planning Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 

Page 5 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 
ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job ntle Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 

296 UF215 Mgr orPurchasing Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
~ 9tTC105 Mgr of Quality Assurance AFSCME,Local3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
29~ 000005 Mgr of Real Estate Services Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
299 TF230 Mgr of Reliability Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

300 EF159 Mgr of Research & Development Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
301 FF295 Mgr of Revenue Control Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

302 OFlll Mgr of Schedules & Services Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
303 SFlOO Mgr of Security Programs Non-Represented Employees N13 $147,316.00 $228,343.00 

~Cl4 Al::3oa Mgr of Special Projects AFSCME, Local3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 

305 MF840 Mgr of Strategic Main Prog Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
306 EF236 Mgr of Traction Power Engr Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
307 EF130 Mgr ofTrain Control Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
308 MC805 Mgr of Transit Vehicl Cleaning AFSCME, Local3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
309 OF170 Mgr ofTransportation Ops Supp Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
310 TF237 Mgr of Vehicle Sys Engineer Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
311 MF850 Mgr of Warranty Administration Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
312 VA125 Multimedia Assistant Producer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
313 HF152 Multimedia Producer Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
314 CA115 Office Services Supervisor SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 800 $65,103.38 $85,102.58 
315 CAill Office Services Support Clerk SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 021 $49,866.75 $65,185.33 
316 08120 Operations Foreworker ATU, Local 1555 821 $80,811.74 $95,072.85 
317 o c 118 Operations Supervisor Liaison AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
31~ o c ris <5perations Supv AFSCME, Local3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
319 HFlll Operations Training Supervisor Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
320 MAS47 Overhead Door Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
321 MA360 Painter SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
322 000092 Para legal Non-Represented Employees 710 $76,869.52 $91,140.40 

"313 HF146 Personnel Analyst I Non-Represented Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 
324 HF147 Personnel Analyst II Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 

"325 QF13S Planner AFSCME, Local 3993 AFC $81,029.39 $105,338.76 
326 l::E17S Police Aomin Specialist BART Police Officers Association 045 $67,534.27 $78,928.72 
327 PDlll Police Admin Supervisor I BART Police Managers Association CS $110,676.oo $128,424.00 
32g 000111 Police Admin Supervisor II BART Police Managers Association CS2 $114,012.00 $132,300.00 

""329 ooc'ff24 Police Admin Supervisor Iii BART Police Managers Association CS3 $115,104.00 $133,572.00 
330 000125 Police Admin Supervisor IV BART Police Managers Association CS4 $118,980.00 $138,072.00 
331 000126 Police Admin Supervisor V BART Police Managers Association CS5 $1 20,648.00 $140,004.00 

332 000127 Police Admin Supervisor VI BART Police Managers Association CS6 $125,064.00 $145,140.00 

333 PD116 Police CAD/RMS Admin I BART Police Managers Association CS $110,676.00 $128,424.00 
334 000128 Police CAD7RMS Admin II BART Police Managers Association CS2 $114,012.00 $132,300.00 

335 000129 Police CAD/ RMS Admin Ill BART Police Managers Association CS3 $115,104.00 $133,572.00 

336 000130 Police CAD/ RMS Admin IV BART Police Managers Association CS4 $118,980.00 $138,072.00 
'"337000131 Police CAD7 RMS Admin V BART Police Managers Association CS5 $120,648.00 $140,004.00 
338 000112 Police CAD/ RMS Admin VI BART Police Managers Association CS6 $125,064.00 $145,140.00 

339 PFllO Police Chief• Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 
340 PDllS Police Civilian Supv Admin I BART Police Managers Association CS $110,676.00 $128,424.00 
341 000132 Police Civilian Supv Admin II BART Police Managers Association cs2 $114,012.00 $132,300.00 
342 000133 Police Civilian Supv Admin Ill BART Police Managers Association CS3 $115,104.00 $133,572.00 
343 000134 Police Civilian Supv Admin IV BART Police Managers Association CS4 $118,980.00 $138,072.00 

344 000135 Police Civilian Supv Admin V BART Police Managers Association CS5 $120,648.00 $140,004.00 
345 000136 Police Civilian Supv Admin VI BART Police Managers Association CS6 $125,064.00 $145,140.00 
34() PD118 Police Civilian Supv Comm I BART Police Managers Association CS $110,676.00 $128,424.00 
347 000137 Police Civilian Supv Comm II BART Police Managers Association CS2 $114,012.00 $132,300.00 
348 000138 Police Civilian Supv Comm Ill BART Police Managers Association CS3 $115,104.00 $133,572.00 
349 000139 Police Civilian Supv Comm IV BART Police Managers Association CS4 $118,980.00 $138,072.00 
350 000113 Police Civilian Supv Comm V BART Police Managers Association CS5 $120,648.00 $140,004.00 
351 000140 Police Civilian Supv Comm VI BART Police Managers Association CS6 $125,064.00 $145,140.00 

352 000038 Police Consultant Non-Represented Employees N14 $170,533.00 $264,330.00 

353 PE115 Police Dispatcher BART Police Officers Association 048 $70,202.91 $85,447.02 
354 PD125 Police Lieutenant I BART Police Managers Association LT $133,464.00 $152,844.00 

Page 6 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job ntle) 

As of January 1, 2019 
ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 
# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
355 000146 Police Lieutenant II BART Police Managers Association LT2 $137,460.00 $157,440.00 
356 000119 Police Lieutenant Ill BART Police Managers Association LT3 $138,804.00 $158,976.00 
357 000147 Police Lieutenant IV BART Police Managers Association LT4 $143,472.00 $164,316.00 
358 000120 Police Lieutenant V BART Police Managers Association LTS $145,476.00 $166,620.00 
359 000121 Police Lieutenant VI BART Police Managers Association LT6 $150,816.00 $172,728.00 
360 PE130 Police Officer BART Police Officers Association 778 $73,585.82 $103,881.02 
361 PE129 Police Officer in Academy BART Police Officers Association 777 $64,928.66 $64,928.66 
362 PD135 Police Sergeant I BART Police Managers Association SGT $108,912.00 $129,240.00 
363 000114 Police Sergeant II BART Police Managers Association SG2 $112,200.00 $133,116.00 
364 000115 Police Sergeant Ill BART Police Managers Association SG3 $113,280.00 $134,412.00 
365 000116 Police Sergeant IV BART Police Managers Association SG4 $117,096.00 $138,924.00 
366 000117 Police Sergeant V BART Police Managers Association SGS $118,716.00 $140,880.00 
367 000118 Police Sergeant VI BART Police Managers Association SG6 $123,084.00 $146,040.00 
368 PD138 Police Support Svcs Supv I BART Police Managers Association CS $110,676.00 $128,424.00 
369 000141 Police Support Svcs Supv II BART Police Managers Association CS2 $114,012.00 $132,300.00 
370 000142 Police Support Svcs Supv Ill BART Police Managers Association CS3 $115,104.00 $133,572.00 
371 000143 Police Support Svcs Supv IV BART Police Managers Association CS4 $118,980.00 $138,072.00 
372 000144 Police Support Svcs Supv V BART Police Managers Association css $120,648.00 $140,004.00 
373 000145 Police Support Svcs Supv VI BART Police Managers Association CS6 $125,064.00 $145,140.00 
374 MA535 Power & Mechanical Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 824 $80,535.52 $105,275.25 
375 MAS45 Power & Mechanical Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
376 08130 Power & Support Controller ATU, Local 1555 831 $88,830.77 $104,506.90 
377 AC222 Principal Admin Analyst AFSCME AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
378 AF222 Principal Admin Analyst NR Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
379 000045 Principal Architect Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
380 EF256 Principal Civil Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
381 EF090 Principal Computer Systems Eng Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
382 EF262 Principal Construction Engr Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
383 UF230 Principal Contract Specialist Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
384 000067 Principal EGIS Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
385 EF267 Principal Electrical Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
386 EFS02 Principal Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
387 FC139 Principal Financial Analyst AFSCM E, Loca I 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
388 VC055 Principal Gov & Comm Rei Rep AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
389 FF301 Principal Internal Auditor Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
390 HF128 Principal Labor Relations Rep Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
391 VC084 Principal Marketing Rep AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
392 EF271 Principal Mechanical Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
393 000186 Principal Performance Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
394 HF156 Principal Personnel Analyst Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
395 QC112 Principal Planner AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
396 QC226 Principal Property Devlmnt Ofc AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
397 TF256 Principal Reliability Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
398 QC225 Principal Right of Way Officer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
399 AF234 Principal Rsch Proj Analyst Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
400 SF129 Principal Safety Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
401 EF276 Principal Structural Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
402 EF279 Principal Track Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
403 EF146 Principal Train Control Eng Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
404 TF236 Principal Vehicle Sys Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOB $109,929.00 $170,391.00 
405 000184 Procurement Support Mgr AFSCME, Local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 
406 MF842 Program Logistics Manager Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
407 000079 Program Manager I Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
408 000018 Program Manager II Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
409 FA130 Project Control Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SOB $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
410 EF250 Project Manager Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
411 000080 Project Manager II Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
412 EF451 Project Support Manager Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
413 VCllO Public Information Officer AFSCME, Local3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 

Page 7 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary M inimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
414 VAllS Pii6lic Information Rep SEIU, Local 1021- ProfessionafChapter 

51_1 __ 
$"81,257.76- - $106,21932 

415 TAllO Quality Assurance Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 508 $70,269.24 $91,855.20 
416 000066 Quality Assurance Officer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
417 000035 Quality Team Leader SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 313 $73,698.98 $96,338.74 
418 000015 Query ~ Reports Spee AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
419 KF175 Rail Svs 1'.:ompl Officer Lapitol Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
420 OA205 Real Estate Officer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
421 OAlOO Real Estate Tecfi SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerica l ~ Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
422 IA185 Real Time Programmer Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 513 $89,529.72 $117,032.28 
42j TF245 Relia6ility Engineer Non-Represented Employees N05 S86,132.oo $133,506.00 
424 V\140 Reprograpfiics Equipment Oper SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical ~ Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
425 EF142 Researcfi ~ Dev Specialist Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
426 AF233 Researcfi Projects Supv Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
427 P~140 Revenue Protection Guard BART Police Officers Association 098 $69,257.34 $83,104.74 
428 MA8io Rolling Stock Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical ~ Maintenance 827 $82,512.77 $107,860.06 
429 MF818 Rolling Stock Maint Super Non-Represented Employees Nll S127,256.oo $197,252.00 
4ji'l Omil49 Safety~ Training Mgr eBART Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
4jl SF120 Safety Specialist AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 
432 08135 Scfieduling Analyst ATU, Local 1555 731 $93,241.41 $109,695.87 
4jj i'li'l0i'.l48 Scfieduling Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
4j4 MC725 Sect Mgr Elev7Escalator Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
4j5 MC724 Sect Mgr Power~ Mecfi Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
4jb MC7g Sect Mgr Struct lnsp ~ Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
437 MC721 Sect Mgr Structures Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
4~8 ML72i'l Sect Mgr Systems Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
4j9 Mc122 Sect Mgr Track Maint AFSCME, [ ocal 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
440 000176 Senior Buyer SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 510 $77,414.76 $101,195.76 
441 i'loi'.!181 Senior Quality Manager Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
442 MA225 Sfiop Macfiinist SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
44j TA2b0 Sfiop Scfieduler SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 510 $77,414.76 $101,195.76 
444 MAiji'.J Sfiop Welder SEIU, focal 1021 - Clerical~ Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
445 Mc 701 Spee Proj Mgr Track 11; Struct AFSCME, Local 3993 - AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
44b 000158 Special Projects Mgr AFSCME AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
447 FA288 Sr Account Clerk SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical 11; Maintenance 031 S55,757.31 $72,885.49 
448 AC220 Sr Admin Analyst AFSCME AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 
449 AFi ii'l Sr Aamin Analyst NR Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
4si'l IAl!'.H'.i Sr Appl Programmer Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 514 $93,978.36 $122,847.48 
451 IC142 Sr Applications Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
452 [ F120 Sr Attorney Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
45~ FH140 Sr Buaget Clerk SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical~ Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
454 000166 Sr CAD Dralter SEIU, Local 1021- Prdessional Cfiapter 510 $77,414.76 $101,195.76 
455 FA290 Sr Casfi Hanaler SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical ~ Maintenance 035 $54,984.18 $71,874.82 
456 TC222 Sr Central Maint Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
457 EF255 Sr Civil Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
458 CB145 Sr Clerk ATU ATU, Local 1555 031 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 
459 CF146 Sr Clerk NR Non-Represented Employees 031 $61,476.69 $72,885.49 
460 CG145 Sr Clerk SEIU SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
4bl aaoo7s Sr Computer Support Coord SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Cfiapter 516 $102,528.96 $134,024.76 
462 EF138 Sr Computer Systems Engineer Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
4bj EF260 Sr Construction Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
4b4 oachs1 Sr 1'.:ontracts Officer eBART Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
465 EF2El5 Sr Electrical Engineer Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
4bb EF140 Sr Electronics~ Comm Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
467 HF114 Sr Employee Dev Specialist Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
468 FC137 Sr Energy Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
469 EF501 Sr Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
470 000002 Sr Executive Staff Assistant Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
471 FC138 Sr Financial Analyst AFSCME AFSCME, Local3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
472 FFBS Sr Financial Analyst NR Non-Represented Employees N05 $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

Page 8 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 

473 VCOSl Sr Gov & Comm Relations Rep AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $96,218. 14 $125,083.27 
474 TA314 Sr Graphic Artist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 510 $77,414.76 $101,195.76 
475 000093 SR HR Division Mgr Talent Acq Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
476 FF253 Sr Internal Auditor Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

477 UC108 Sr Inventory Control Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 
478 000089 Sr Labor Relations Analyst Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
479 HF126 Sr Labor Relations Rep Non-Represented Employees 

- N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
480 AA130 Sr Legal Secretary SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 071 $56,254.85 $73,535.90 
481 UC190 Sr Logistics Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
482 TA220 Sr Maint Planner SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
483 000053 Sr Maintenance Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

484 VC082 Sr Marketing Rep AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
485 000029 Sr Marketing Rep PT AFSCME, Local3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
486 EF270 Sr Mechanical Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
487 000179 Sr Mgr of Engineering Programs Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

488 000175 Sr Mgr of Engineering,eBART Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

489 000177 Sr Mgr of Perf Analytics Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

490 000185 Sr Mgr, Finance Analyis & Admn Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 

491 CAlSS Sr Office Services Supv SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 509 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

492 CA112 Sr Office Svs Support Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
493 08145 Sr Operations Foreworker ATU, Local 1555 831 $88,830.77 $104,506.90 
494 OClSS Sr Operations Supvr Liaison AFSCME, Local3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 

495 SC135 Sr Ops Safety Spee AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 

496 18190 Sr Ops Suppt Sys Analyst ATU, Loca l 1555 742 $98,912.94 $116,368.30 

497 HFlSS Sr Personnel Analyst Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

498 QC145 Sr Planner AFSCME,Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

499 000105 Sr Police Officer - Adv. BART Police Officers Association 792 $110,207.14 $110,207.14 

500 PE131 Sr Police Officer - lnt. BART Police Officers Association 788 $106,997.28 $106,997.28 
501 000052 Sr Production Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 
502 EF238 Sr Quality Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

503 QC210 Sr Real Estate Officer AFSCME, Local3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

504 TF255 Sr Reliability Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

SOS AF232 Sr Research Projects Analyst Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

506 QC224 Sr Right of Way Officer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

507 SC130 Sr Safety Specialist AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

508 000031 Sr Scheduling Analyst ATU ATU, Local 1555 732 $102,503.23 $120,592.16 

509 AB135 Sr Secretary ATU ATU, Local 1555 061 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 

510 AF135 Sr Secretary NR Non-Represented Employees 061 $57,774.50 $68,353.58 
511 AJ135 Sr Secretary SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 061 $52,290.37 $68,353.58 

512 AF138 Sr Staff Asst Non-Represented Employees N02 $74,403.00 $115,329.00 

513 UA160 Sr Storekeeper SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 171 $65,103.38 $85,102.58 

514 EF275 Sr Structural Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

515 IC200 Sr Systems Programmer AFSCME, Local3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 

516 IA210 Sr Telecommunications Tech SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 514 $93,978.36 $122,847.48 

517 FC200 Sr nme & Labor Admin Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 

518 EF145 Sr Train Control Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

519 000044 Sr Transp Training Clerk ATU, Local 1555 036 $64,942.18 $76,402.56 

520 CB160 Sr Transportation Clerk ATU, Local 1555 031 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 

521 TF232 Sr Transportation Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

522 TF234 Sr Vehicle Systems Engineer Non-Represented Employees N06 $94,961.00 $147,191.00 

523 AF139 Staff Asst Non-Represented Employees NOl $67,485.00 $104,605.00 

524 08155 Station Agent ATU, Local 1555 521 $66,240.93 $77,930.74 

525 08156 Station Agent PT ATU, Local 1555 541 $72,865.10 $85,723.66 

526 UA170 Storekeeper SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 201 $59,617.17 $77,930.94 

527 000057 Strategic Prg Mgr, Ext Affairs Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 

528 EF280 Structural Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

529 MA615 Structures Equipment Operator SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

530 MA620 Structures Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

531 MA638 Structures Inspect Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 810 $80,674.67 $105,457.25 

Page 9 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule {Noted by Job Tit le) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENT A 

Salary Minimum/ M aximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 

-532 MA63 7 Structures Inspector SEIU, Local 102-i-:-tlerical & Maintenance 311 $73,391.55 $95,936.88 
533 MA636 Structures Inspector Asst SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 201 $59,617.17 $77,930.94 

534 MA630 Structures Welder SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

535 MA635 Structures Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 201 $59,617.17 $77,930.94 

536 000036 Structures Worker PT SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 221 $65,578.86 $65,578.86 

537 MFS35 Super of Power & Mech Maint Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

538 000087 Super of Sys eBART Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

539 000085 Superintendent of eBART/ OAK Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

540 000164 Superintendent of System Serv Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

541 MF703 Superintendent of Systems Main Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

542 MF610 Superintendent of Way & Fae Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 

543 000010 Supv Bus Sys Operations AFSCME, Loca l 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 

544 000148 Supv o f Operations e8ART AFSCME e8ART EBl $109,163.60 $141,912.67 

545 TF263 Survey Taker PT Non-Represented Employees 093 $73,948.37 $73,948.37 

546 EA315 Survey Tech SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 091 $61,144.72 $79,927.95 

547 000157 Sys General Custodian e8ART SEIU Maintenance eBART 401 $50,734.53 $66,319.76 
548 000152 System Main Signal Comm eBART SEIU Maintenance e8ART 400 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

549 000154 System Main Track Signal eBART SEIU Maintenance e8ART 400 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

550 MA385 System Service Crewleader SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 141 $52,366.08 $68,452.59 

551 MA390 System Service Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 818 $71,389.55 $93,319.82 

552 MC395 System Service Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 

553 MA400 System Service Worker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 111 $50,734.53 $66,319.76 

554 MA399 System Service Worker 141 SEIU, Local 1021 - clerical & Maintenance 141 $52,366.08 $68,452.59 

SSS MA401 System Service Worker PT SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 121 $55,807.86 $55,807.86 

556 1( 198 Systems Programmer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 

557 000007 Tech Maintenance Support Coord AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 

558 TA140 Tech Publications Admin SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SlO $77,414.76 $101,195.76 

559 TA302 Technical Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 

560 TA125 Technical Editor SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S03 $55,178.40 $72,128.64 

561 IA300 Technical Programmer Analyst SEIU, l ocal 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 

562 000025 Technical Publications Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S09 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

5b3 f"A301 Technical Resources Admin SEIU, Local 1021- Professiona l Chapter S13 $89,529.72 $117,032.28 

564 IA200 Telecommunications Specialist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter S06 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 

565 IA205 Telecommunications Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Professiona l Chapter S09 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

566 000068 Time & Labor Admin Analyst ATU ATU, Loca l 1555 741 $86,208.72 $101,422.05 
567 FA212 Time and Labor Admin Analyst SEIU, Local 1021- Professiona l Chapter TAD $77,588.04 $101,422.32 

568 UA180 Tool Room Attendant SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 201 $59,617.17 $77,930.94 

569 MA640 Track Equipment Operator SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

570 M A645 Track Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

571 MAGSS Track Welder SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

572 MA660 Track Worker SEIU, l ocal 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 201 $59,617.17 $77,930.94 
573 000022 Track Worker PT SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 221 $65,578.86 $65,578.86 

574 MA720 Train Control Electronic Tech SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 

575 EF165 Train Control Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 

576 MA725 Train Control Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 

577 OC190 Train Controller AFSCM E, local 3993 AFI $124,045.47 $161,258.87 

578 08160 Train Operator ATU, local 1555 621 $66,240.93 $77,930.74 
579 0 8161 Train Operator PT ATU, Local 1555 641 $72,865.10 $85,723.66 
580 CA165 Transit Information Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
581 CA175 Transit Information Supv SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
582 CA159 Transit Information Tech SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
583 MA825 Transit Veh Elec Tee SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
584 MA830 Transit Vehicle Mechanic SEIU, l ocal 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
585 000037 Transit Vehicle Mechanic PT SEIU, local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 314 $77,221.87 $77,221.87 
586 000033 Transportation Adm Specialist ATU, Local 1555 031 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 
587 CB175 Transportation Clerk ATU, Local 1555 021 $61,952.59 $72,885.49 
588 OF080 Transportation Operations Mgr Non-Represented Employees N09 $115,426.00 $178,912.00 
589 OClSO Transportation Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
590 FC275 Treasury Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $89,454.70 $116,291.33 

Page 10 of 11 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job ntle) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Salary Minimum/ Maximum/ 

# Job Code Job Title Bargaining Unit Grade Annual Annual 
591 CA180 Trouble Desk Data Specialist SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 036 $58,447.79 $76,402.56 
592 MA826 TVET Trainee SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 331 $63,237.62 $82,663.57 
593 MA840 Utility Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 818 $71,389.55 $93,319.82 
594 MA835 Utility Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance--111 $50,734.53 $66,319.76 
595 MA836 Utility Worker PT SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 121 $55,807.86 $55,807.86 
596 TA130 Vehicle Inspector SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 311 $73,391.55 $95,936.88 
597 MC830 Vehicle Performance Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
598 TF233 Vehicle Systems Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
599 MA900 Warranty Administrator SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter Sll $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
600 TABS Wayside Inspector SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 311 $73,391.55 $95,936.88 
601 TA311 Web Page Specialist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter SlO $77,414.76 $101,195.76 

• Due to the unique nature of these jobs as executive management employees reporting directly to the General Manager, these classifications are eligible to 

receive Management Incentive Pay of $4,800 annually (26 equal pay period installments of $184.61). 

Board Appointed Officer salaries were effective as of 7/1/2018. 

Page 11 of 11 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

AGER APPR0~72 6 
c, JI{ r.fet( Zct:) 

1,11,. G,t...-

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 3/5/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

[ l []~ 

Salesforce License Expansion 

PURPOSE: 
To request that the Board authorize the General Manager to negotiate and execute a four-year 
license agreement with Salesforce, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $1,126,644, to integrate 
Salesforce Email Studio software with its existing suite of Salesforce software including 
Salesforce Service Cloud and Salesforce Social Studio. 

DISCUSSION: 
The District is undertaking a strategic effort to improve and coordinate digital marketing and 
communications with more effective email and short messaging services (SMS) for 
customers. Currently, the District has multiple software platforms to manage and generate 
email and SMS essaging, including real-time delay and elevator status, BART news, BART 
project updates, contract and vendor updates, constituent lists, BARTable marketing 
messages, and more. Each system has multiple opt-in emails and SMS lists. There is no 
single place for customers to view all their BART email and SMS subscriptions, and the 
District is unable to coordinate message delivery effectively. The District cunently maintains 
more than 100 separate opt-in email and SMS lists, each with as many as 42,000 
subscribers. There are more than 300,000 total subscriptions in various systems, and the 
overall subscription rate is growing at approximately 14% a year. 

The Salesforce Email Studio being procured under this action would provide a more holistic 
solution for email and SMS services that integrate with existing District platforms. The 



Sales force License Expansion (cont.) 

BART Customer Services Department currently uses the Salesforce Service Cloud for case 
management and.reporting. The Communications and Marketing teams use Salesforce 
Social Studio for social media engagement. The procurement of Salesforce Email Studio 
would integrate these existing solutions to provide a single, unified platform for promoting 
opt-in messaging services and sending important and timely messages to customers. 
Ultimately, Email Studio will allow the District to communicate relevant messaging, at the 
right time, in the proper medium, to the correct audience. 

The District has made an investment in improving Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) by products offered through the Salesforce software platform. Since the District 
seeks a solution that is compatible with the District's existing licensed Salesforce products 
described above, staff has recommended the direct procurement of Salesforce Email Studio, 
which is the only compatible product on the market. Products from other vendors would 
not be compatible and would not effectively resolve the issues this software is intended to 
address. 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to Sole 
Source Agreements. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority 
Business Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages 
for this Agreement. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

The proposed agreement is for a four ( 4) year contract from April 1, 2019 - January 16, 
2023, in an an1ount not to exceed $1,126,644. Funds for this agreement will come from the 
Office of the Chief Information Officer operating budget using cost center 0802842 -
Telecommunications Program, account 680230 - Repairs & Maintenance, as follows: 

Additional Currently Extended 
Funding Funded TOTAL 

FY19* $36,252 $116,252 $152,817 

FY20 $195,000 $120,062 $315,062 

FY21 $200,850 $123,664 $324,514 

FY22 $206,876 $127,374 $334,250 

Total $638,978 $487,666 $1,126,644 

*Funding is expected to begin 4/1/2019. 



Sales force License Expansion (cont.) 

This table includes proposed new expenditures for Salesforce Email Studio, and current 
spending for the existing Salesforce licensing including Service Cloud, Sales Cloud Social 
Studio. 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department's existing operating 
budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating 
budget, which is subject to Board approval. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal 
Impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not authorize the execution of this Agreement. This option will result in the continued 
use of fragmented systems and would not improve or coordinate email and short messaging 
services (SMS) for customers. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to negotiate and execute a four-year license agreement 
with Salesforce, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $1,126,644, to procure Salesforce Email 
Studio software. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGERAPPROV AL: 

DATE: 1/30/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Mark Dana 

Dept: Planning, Development and 

Construction 

Signatur~ 'JP7/d 
[ l 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and forward to the E&O Committee 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ l 

Award Contract No. 15LK-l20A Market Street Escalators Renovation Project 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to Award Contract No. 15LK-120A, 
Market Street Escalators Renovation Project to Schindler Elevator Corporation (Schindler) 
for the Bid Price of $96,478,922 and for the General Manager to be authorized to exercise 
Option 1 for additional SFMTA escalators. 

DISCUSSION: 

The existing escalators at station street entrances/exits and to/from station platforms in the 
four downtowri San Francisco Stations of Embarcadero, Montgomery Street, Powell Street, 
and Civic Center regularly malfunction and currently need replacement. The Proposed 
Project is intended to upgrade the durability and reliability of escalators to current industry 
standards while improving safety, security and passengers' experience. The proposed 
improvements include the installation/replacement of 41 escalators: 23 escalators from the 
street to Concourse Level, and 18 escalators from the Concourse to Platform Level. The 
Contract includes an equipment performance preservation requirement for all escalators to 
demonstrate 96% reliability subject to financial penalty during the duration of the Contract. 
Bid Option 1 is to install four ( 4) escalators for San Francisco Municipal Transportation 
Agency (SFMTA) from the Concourse Level to the SFMTA Platform Level at Embarcadero 
Station that would be exercised upon request and funding from SFMTA. Bid Option 2 is for 
the Contractor to provide an additional 24 months of Equipment Performance Preservation 
services which requires that BART escalators continue to meet reliability requirements for 
two years following Final Acceptance of the Contract, which Staff is not requesting 



Award Contract 15LK-120A Market Street Escalators Renovation Project 

authorization to exercise. Numerous public and stakeholder meetings have been conducted 
by BART and the City and Co-µnty of San Francisco in connection with the Proposed 
Project. Input from those meetings has .been incorporated into the Contract. 

A previous attempt to procure eight escalators at these and other stations in 2016 resulted 
in receipt of one Bid, which was rejected by the Board of Directors. The Board directed 
staff to evaluate design revisions that would entice more Contractors to participate in the 
bidding process and stimulate competitive pricing for escalators. An industry review was 
conducted. Staff incorporated the industry comments for modifying the BART Facilities 
Standards design criteria to more closely match American Public Transportation Association 

. (APTA) transit escalator requirements. In addition, the Contact scope is increased, and 
equipment performance preservation of the escalator units is required during the duration of 
the Contract. 

Advance Notice to Bidders was mailed on October 22, 2018 to. 82 firms. The Contract was 
Advertised on October 24, 2018 ·and Contract Books were sent to plan rooms. A total of 34 
online plan holders downloaded the Bid Documents. A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on 
November 8, 2018 with a total of six potential Bidders attending. Site tours were held 
following the Pre-Bid meeting on November 8, 2018. Five (5)Addenda to the Contract were 
issued. Two (2) Bids were received. Bids were opened publicly on February 5, 
2019. Instructions to Bidders specified that Bids will be evaluated on the basis of the Total 
Bid Price. Tabulation of the Bids, including Options and the Engineer's Estimate, is as 
follows: 

BIDDER/LOCATION TOTAL OPTION 1 OPTION2 TOTALBID 
BASE BID PRICE 

Schindler Elevator $96,478,922 $6,114,852 $3,989,136 $106,582,910 
Corporation 

San Leandro, CA 
Kone, Inc. $119,510,345 $10,022,252 $3,001,200 $132,533,797 

Moline, IL 
Engineer's Estimate $151,649,392 $10,863,365 $3,963,552 $166,476,309 

Instructions to Bidders specified that Bids will be evaluated on the basis of the Total Bid 
Price. After review by the District staff, the apparent low Bid submitted by Schindler · 
Elevator Corporation has been determined to be fair and reasonable and is deemed to be 



Award Contract 15LK-120A Market Street Escalators Renovation Project 

responsive to the solicitation. Both Bids received were significantly lower than the Engineer's 
Estimate as the Estimate did not place enough weight on the economy of scale realized by 
packaging a large number of escalators with the equipment performance preservation 
requirement. Examination ofthis Bidder's business experience and financial capabilities has 
resulted in the determination that the Bidder is responsible. 

In order to meet the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), a 
Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was circulated for a 30 day 
public review on April 3 0, 2018 that evaluated the impacts associated with the installation of 
the escalators and for 22 street canopies that will be installed in a separate Contract No. 
lSLK-140. On June 28, 2018, the Board adopted the IS/MND, the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Plan and the Project. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set 
a 6% Local Small Business (LSB) Subcontractor Participation Goal for this Contract. 
Bidders who meet the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal are eligible for a LSB 
Preference of 5% of the lowest responsible Bidder's Bid, up to a cap of $1.5 Million. 
Schindler Elevator Corporation committed to subcontracting 6.1 % to LSBs. Schindler 
Elevator Corporation met the LSB Subcontractor Participation Goal and, therefore, is 

· eligible for the 5% Bid Preference. After the application of the 5% Bid Preference, Schindler 
Elevator Corporation is still the lowest responsive Bidder and, therefore, the application of 
the Bid Preference will not alter the Award to Schindler Elevator Corporation. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 18.2% for Minority Business Enterprises ("MBEs") and 
9.3% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). Schindler Elevator Corporation 
committed to 51 % MBE and 6.9% WBE participation. Schindler Elevator Corporation did 
not meet the WBE Availability Percentage; therefore, Schindler Elevator Corporation was 
requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with supporting documentation to determine 
if it had discriminated on the basis of gender. Based on the review of the information 
submitted by Schindler Elevator Corporation, the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence 
of discrimination. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding of $96,478,922 for Award of Contract No. 15LK-120A is included in the total 
project budget for 15LK002, San Francisco Escalator Replacement. The Office of 
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The 
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality 
to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request wiUbe 
expended from the source as liste~: 



Award Contract 15LK-120A Market Street Escalators Renovation Project 

Measure RR $ 190,000,000 

TOTAL $190,000,000 

As of February 22, 2019, $190,000,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has 
expended $4,308,673, committed $156,127 and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit 
$96,478,922 leaving an available fund balance of $89,056,278 balance for this project. 

This action is not anticipated to have any fiscal impact on unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

The Board may elect to reject all Bids and authorize staff to re-advertise the Contract. By re
advertising the Contract, this would result in additional cost and time to the District with no 
assurance that rebidding will result in lower Bid prices. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to Award Contract No. 15LK-120A, Market Street 
Escalators Renovation Project to Schindler Elevator Corporation for the Bid Price 
of $96,478,922 subject to the District's protest procedures. 

In addition, the General Manager is authorized to exercise Option 1 for $6,114,852 subject to 
agreement and funding availability from SFMTA. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 8, 2019 

FROM: Grace Crunican 

SUBJECT: Measure RR Equity Program and Small Business Update 

Attached is a Measure RR Equity Program and Small Business update that will be presented to the 
Board at the March 14, 2019 meeting as an informational item. 

If you have any questions, please contact Maceo Wiggins, Department Manager, Office of Civil 
Rights, at ( 510) 464-7194. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

prace Crunican 



a:..w ..... 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 
,J 

1 1 
<7") ~I FEil!> Z.019 

£.bA' ,I,,(. r ~ 
DA1E: 2/4/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Maureen. Wetter 

Dept: MarketiIJ.g and Research 

Jfll- t,tff;ft;t:-
Signa~re/Date: / 

. :Z..//C/117 

GENERAL MANAGERACTIONREQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Jr./ · .. t. 

BARC 

Suryeillance Ordinance Use Policy and Impact Report: BART Research 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization to implement the use of certain research methodologies that 
may fall under BART's Surveillance Ordinance. These methodologies are referenced in the 
attached Surveill~ce Use Policy and Surveillance Impact Report. 

DISCUSSION: 
The District's Surveillance Technology Ordinance defines a "Surveillance Technology" in 
part as, " ... any electronic device or system with the capacity to monitor and collect audio, 
visual, locational ... or similar information." Research methodologies that may meet.this 
definition include those using electronic or mobile data collection. BART is proposing to 
use such electronic or mobile data collection methodologies for research purposes. 

Consistent with the District's Surveillance Technology Ordinance, staff has.developed a · 
Surveillance Use Policy and Surveillance Impact Report for this topic, "BART Research: 
Data collection & usage for research and learning." 

Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Board was notified 21. days in advance, and the Public was 
notified 15 days in advance (via posting on bart.gov and advertisement in several 
newspapers within the District) of this BART ResearchSurveillance Use Policy and 
Surveillance Impact Report. This item is further described below: 

BART Researc,h: Data collection & usage for research and learning 
BART conducts research for a variety of purposes, including providing market infonnation 
and metrics to help inform District decisions related to· strategic planning, budget priorities, 
station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas.- Research methodologies using 



Surveillance Ordinance Use Policy and Impact Report: BART Research (cont.) 

electronic and/or mobile technologies may collect locational information for purposes such 
as to facilitate "in the moment" ratings of BART facilities (to improve accuracy of ratings), 
or to analyze travel behavior. Audio and/or visual information may be collected to help 
explain reasons for customer ratings, to be used as a resource when documenting focus 
group research, or for quality control purposes. Participation in BART surveys and focus 
groups involving these technologies is strictly voluntary, and customers may opt-out at any 
time. In addition to facilitating expanded research capabilities, use of these technologies 
results in faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter 
survey results. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
This EDD is requesting approval for the use of Surveillance Technology, not the funds. 
Funding approval for Surveillance Technology, if required in the future, will be handled by 
separate action. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not approve the use of research methodologies using technologies that collect audio, 
visual, or locational information. If this occurred, the District would not be able to take 
advantage of new research technologies that could increase the speed and accuracy of data 
collection/reporting while reducing cost. For example, instead of using a smart phone app 
to record trips, travel diary participants could be asked to manually fill out complex and 
lengthy forms to record all trips taken by members of their household during a given week, 
resulting in participant frustration and incomplete information. · 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The Board has determined that the benefits of data collection and usage for research and 
learning as described above outweigh the costs that may be incurred by such activity, and 
the proposed Surveillance Use Policy will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. 
The Board approves the attached impact and use reports, "BART Research OEA
BMRDDCU-SUP-06" and "BART Research OEA-BMRDDCU-SIR-06." The General 
Manager or her designee is authorized to proceed with the use of data collection and usage 
for research and learning as described in these reports. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 7, 2019 

FROM: Grace Crunican 

SUBJECT: MTC Presentation on the CASA Compact and Plan Bay Area 2050 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the transportation planning, financing, and 
coordinating agency for the nine-county Bay Area. At the March 141

h, BART Board meeting, Ken 
Kirkey, MTC's Integrated Planning Department Director, will present two informational items. 

CASA. The CASA (Committee to House the Bay Area) compact defined strategies to 
immediately begin addressing the region's housing crisis. BART staff have been active 
participants in this process, consistent with BART's Transit-Oriented Development Policy, 
which states that BART should lead in the delivery of the region's transportation and land use 
vision and help address unmet regional housing needs. As discussed at the February 281h BART 
Board meeting, BART staff will return at a later date to seek the Board's position on the 
numerous CASA-related bills in this state legislative session. 

Plan Bay Area. Plan Bay Area, the region's state-mandated, integrated lohg-range transportation 
and land use plan, provides a transportation strategy and roadmap for accommodating forecast 
population growth through 2050 and is updated every four years. Though not a funding plan, Plan 
Bay Area identifies a list of priority regional projects eligible to receive discretionary transportation 
funding. BART staff are working closely with MTC to shape the development of the plan to 
ensure that BART's priority projects are considered. Staff will return to the Board later this spring 
to seek approval of a list of projects for submittal to MTC. 

Please contact Val Menotti, Chief Planning and Development Officer, at (510) 287-4794 if you 
have any questions. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

~ace Crunican 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

-~------------------
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

TO: Board of Directors Date: March 8, 2019 

FROM: Controller-Treasurer 

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER-TREASURER · 

Attached is the Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer for the quarter ending December 31, 
2018 which will be presented to the Board on March 14, 2019. 

Please feel free to call me at 510-464-6070 with any questions you may have. 

'~.Poblete 





Measure RR Equity 
Program and Small 
Business Update


March 14, 2019







Economic Opportunity Programs


2


• Provides a preference to SB prime bidders or 
prime bidders who meet the SB Subcontractor 
Participation Goal.


SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM (SB) 


NON-DISCRIMINATION PROGRAM FOR 
SUBCONTRACTING  (ND)
• Seeks to ensure that prime contractors do not 


discriminate in their selection of subcontractors. 


Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
• Race/gender conscious and neutral 


strategies to help DBEs gain opportunities 
at BART on USDOT funded contracts.



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Micro Small Business Entity (MSBE) Set aside is a subset of our DBE program.This program sets aside specific contracts for which certified MSBEs have the exclusive right to bid. The MSBE Set Aside contract values shall not exceed:$3 million for construction contracts or procurement services$6 million for professional service contracts







Program                                $ Millions Total # 
Projects


# Projects 
in Planning


# Projects 
in Design


# Projects in 
Bid/Award


# Projects in 
Construction


# Projects 
Completed


Renew Track $625 21 8 4 2 5 2
Renew Power  
Infrastructure $1,225 25 0 15 1 8 1
Repair Tunnels &  
Structures $570 22 2 11 3 6 0


Renew Mechanical $135 7 0 5 1 1 0
Replace Train 
Control/Increase 
Capacity


$400 1 0 0 1 0 0


Renew Stations $210 3 0 0 2 1 0
Expand Safe Access to 
Stations $135 21 3 12 1 5 0


Design/Engineer to 
Relieve Crowding $200 8 3 3 2 0 0


Total $3,500 108 16 50 13 26 3 3


Measure RR Update – Project Status







Measure RR Update– Small Business


4


Program Total RR 
Commitment


Total RR SB 
Commitment


SB 
Commitment 


%


# of SB 
Contracts


Renew Track $47,199,550 $11,465,412 24% 52


Renew Power $144,213,145 $76,384,823 53% 139


Repair Tunnels & Structures $71,985,785 $12,876,543 18% 47


Renew Mechanical $14,547,320 $2,277,635 16% 25


Replace Train Control/Increase 
Capacity $3,578,654 $255,358 7% 6


Renew Stations $23,593,863 $2,761,586 12% 18


Expand Safe Access to Stations $5,312,061 $1,793,726 34% 52


Design/Engineer to Relieve 
Crowding $5,723,106 $1,509,231 26% 13


Total $316,153,485 $109,324,314 35% 352
Notes: All amounts are based on RR fund percent only. Amounts are updated to February 21, 2019. Includes formal contracts only; does not include informal 
purchases or work performed by BART’s own forces. SB totals include DBEs, MSBEs, SBs, and LSBs. Sources: RR commitments are based on RR Requisitions 
report, Procurement Sealed Bids Report and PeopleSoft Work Plans application. RR% for each project is based on Financial Analysts’ report, RR Funds / Total 
Project Budget. Payments based on PeopleSoft and VPT. 



Presenter

Presentation Notes

Mechanical SB commitment went down 28% due to two contracts worth $7.3M that have no subs and some work will be done by BART forces.Also due to an IFB worth $2.6M







Target Areas for Business Growth


• Traction Power


• 34.5 KV AC Cable 
Replacement


• Fiber Optic Cables







Presenters


6


Department Manager
Office of Civil Rights


Phone: 510.464.7194
Email: MWiggin@bart.gov


Assistant General Manager
Design & Construction


Phone: 510.464.7592
Email: CHolmes@bart.gov



mailto:MWiggin@bart.gov

mailto:CHolmes@bart.gov





Project
Anticipated 


Advertisement 
Period


Est. Value 
($ millions)


Safety Barrier Maintenance of Way Now $1
Station Emergency Lighting (re-bid) 2019 – Qtr 2 $11
Powell Station Modernization 2019 – Qtr 2 $10
Embarcadero Elevator 2019 – Qtr 2 $8
eBART Yard Facility Canopy 2019 – Qtr 2 $0.7
eBART Surface Parking Lot 2019 – Qtr 2 $9
Bike Station at Embarcadero & Civic Center 2019 – Qtr 2 $0.6


Subtotal $40.3


Upcoming Construction Contracts
To Be Advertised (through 2019)



Presenter

Presentation Notes

The equipment listed above has been in service since 1972 and has passed the recommended end of service life. The goal is to keep the BART TC System and components in a state of good repair. There will also be a TCMP Drayage Contract prepared for the removal of the wayside decommissioned Train Control equipment and cabling. The Scope of work will be generated during the CBTC Contract. All of the specifics will be verified, the equipment/cables will be identified and listed, then scheduled for removal. The Drayage Contract will start at the end of the CBTC contract, after the new TC system is in revenue and has proved to be reliable.   There will be opportunities for small businesses owners in both of the Contracts.  To name a few opportunities, there will be Concrete work, Paving, Fencing, Earthwork, Metal Fabricating, Security, Temporary Controls, cleaning, recycling and waste management.To be advertised FY19 4th Quarter and Awarded in early 2020Replace the existing Core Legacy Stations Train Control Room VAC electrical distribution panelReplace circuits & conduits if neededReplace the Core Legacy wayside Switch Power Supply Cabinets (SPSC) and cable the interlocking Switch MachinesReplace specific transfer track signal cables as needed







Project
Anticipated 


Advertisement 
Period


Est. Value 
($ millions)


Economic 
Opportunity 


Program


Train Control CM 2019 – Qtr 3 $75 DBE/SBE


Train Control DSDC 2019 – Qtr 3 $75 DBE/SBE


Sustaining Architecture 2019 – Qtr 4 $9 MSBE


Sustaining CM 2020 – Qtr 1 $9 MSBE


Sustaining Systems Eng 2020 – Qtr 3 $12 DBE/SBE


Sustaining Facilities Eng 2020 – Qtr 3 $6 MSBE


Total $186


Upcoming RFP’s/RSOQ’s
Contract Awards (through 2020)







Project
Anticipated 


Advertisement 
Period


Est. Value 
($ millions)


Downtown SF Canopies 2019 – Qtr 3 $60
ROW Fence Replacement 2019 – Qtr 3 $2
TCMP Enabling Works (Switch Mach/Cable) 2019 – Qtr 4 $25
Sewage Pump Replacement 2019 – Qtr 4 $6
34.5 kV Cable (Oakland to Union City) 2019 – Qtr 4 TBD
34.5 kV Cable (Ashby to Richmond) 2019 – Qtr 4 TBD
Platform Screen Doors (Pilot at 12th St) TBD TBD


Total $TBD


Upcoming Construction
Contract Awards (through 2019)



Presenter

Presentation Notes

TCMP Enabling Works: The equipment listed above has been in service since 1972 and has passed the recommended end of service life. The goal is to keep the BART TC System and components in a state of good repair. There will also be a TCMP Drayage Contract prepared for the removal of the wayside decommissioned Train Control equipment and cabling. The Scope of work will be generated during the CBTC Contract. All of the specifics will be verified, the equipment/cables will be identified and listed, then scheduled for removal. The Drayage Contract will start at the end of the CBTC contract, after the new TC system is in revenue and has proved to be reliable.   There will be opportunities for small businesses owners in both of the Contracts.  To name a few opportunities, there will be Concrete work, Paving, Fencing, Earthwork, Metal Fabricating, Security, Temporary Controls, cleaning, recycling and waste management.To be advertised FY19 4th Quarter and Awarded in early 2020Replace the existing Core Legacy Stations Train Control Room VAC electrical distribution panelReplace circuits & conduits if neededReplace the Core Legacy wayside Switch Power Supply Cabinets (SPSC) and cable the interlocking Switch MachinesReplace specific transfer track signal cables as needed







Recent On Call Professional Services - CM
Issued June 2018, 
Avg. 43% SBE Commitment


 AECOM/Cooper Pegueda Management, JV, Oakland


 Allen Group/Vali Cooper, JV, San Francisco


Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland
HDR, Walnut Creek


 Jacobs, Oakland


 Parsons Transportation Group, Oakland
 PGH Wong, San Francisco


 PreScience, Oakland



Presenter

Presentation Notes

On June 14, 2018, the BART Board awarded, eight Construction Management (CM) Contracts each at $25M for a total of $200M:







Recent On Call Professional Services – GEC
Issued February 2019, 
Avg. 30% SBE Commitment


 AECOM, Oakland


HDR, Walnut Creek


HTNB/FMG, a JV, Oakland
 Jacobs, Oakland


 Parsons Transportation Group, Oakland


 PGH Wong, San Francisco
 T.Y. Lin/Transit Systems Engineering, a JV, Oakland


WSP, San Francisco



Presenter

Presentation Notes

On February 28, 2019, the BART Board awarded, eight General Engineering Consultant (GEC) Contracts each at $40M for a total of $320M:







Check out our Procurement Portal
https://www.bart.gov/procurement


Thank You


BART Procurement is made up of 2 Divisions: Contracting and Purchasing. 


The Contracting Division handles Services and Construction. 


The Purchasing Division handles Commodities.


Contracts Division Purchasing Division


Oji Kanu Detra Dillon


okanu@bart.gov ddillion@bart.gov


510-464-6554 510-464-6371



https://www.bart.gov/about/business/procurement

mailto:okanu@bart.gov

mailto:ddillion@bart.gov





Agenda


1. INTRODUCTION


2. FACTS & FIGURES


3. MEASURE RR UPDATE


4. TCMP UPDATE


5. VTA/BART UPDATE


6. RECENT ON CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


7. UPCOMING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS


8. UPCOMING RFP’S/RSOQ’S


9. ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY PROGRAMS


10. PROCUREMENT PORTAL







Facts & Figures


14


• Elected Board of Directors – 9 districts 


• 5 Counties:


- Alameda, Contra Costa & San Francisco


- Serves San Mateo, and soon Santa Clara


• 112 total miles


• 5 lines + Oakland Airport Line


• 48 stations


• 49,000 parking spaces


• Farebox recovery:  64%







Measure RR Update: 
Safe Station Access & Crowd Relief


Station Access 
Program: $135M Total


Relieve Crowding 
Program: $200M Total


6



Presenter

Presentation Notes

EXPAND OPPORTUNITIES TO SAFELY ACCESS STATIONSScope:Achieve Station Access Policy Goals & Targets Improve Active Transportation and Enhance Access for Seniors & People with DisabilitiesRenew Transit Transfer Facilities Improve Parking AvailabilityRELIEVE CROWDING, INCREASE SYSTEM REDUNDANCY, REDUCE TRAFFIC CONGESTIONTransbay Crossing Phase 2 – Initial PhaseDesign/Construction of BART Metro Infrastructure ImprovementsDesign/Engineering for Expanded Yard Storage for Increased Fleet (HMC Phase II)Design/Engineering for New Traction Power Substations at Richmond Yard, Pleasant Hill (Minert Ave.), Oakland (34th St.)







Train Control Modernization Project 
(TCMP) Update


16



Presenter

Presentation Notes

 In a nutshell from this single picture in Downtown SF you can see we have a problem BART was built nearly 45 years in the early 1970s – much of the system in need of and overhaulWe have one of the oldest fleet of (660) vehicles in the US - not enough carsFixed block train control equipment designed in the 1960s –much of it still working today but we can’t deliver trains fast enoughHigh density growth occurring around the Bay Area, much of it near BART stations fueled by growth of the worlds largest tech centers Impending extension to Silicon Valley and the headquarters of notable tech companies Intel, Netflix, Cisco, Apple, eBay, Facebook & Google to name a few.  Even more riders. it will get worse before it gets better, but we are working on some solutions. Part of that solution is a commitment to CBTCIts taken a few years but with Peer and Industry support we believe were on track to begin the process of successfully procuring, installing and migrating to a CBTC and gain the additional capacity to provide relief to our riders







45% MORE CAPACITY 


Core Capacity Program
Big 4 Capital Projects


Fleet of the
Future 
$1,652M


425 more vehicles
(1,200 total)


$2,584M
Fleet Replacement


Underway
775 vehicles


Hayward 
Maintenance


Complex
$581M


Train Control 
Modernization


$1.15B


Traction Power
$104M


5 new substations



Presenter

Presentation Notes

BART is advancing the Big 3 Core Capacity Projects to bring the system up to a state of good repair and increase capacity through the TBT(1st Click)  This includes adding a new fleet of 775 vehicles and another 425 to get to 1200 fleet to replace our aging fleet and allow all 10 car trains (2nd click) To accommodate the new fleet we are expanding and improving our Maintenance Complex (Hayward Yard).(3rd Click) Train Control Modernization of  our aging train control systemWith these investments over the next several years, these means more 10-car trains, more often.(4th Click) BART will add 30% more Transbay Capacity, going from 207 vehicles (23 trains to 28/30 trains) in the peak hour – peak direction, to around 290 vehicles.(5th Click) Not to be forgotten,  equally important to the Big 3 includes Traction Power ($1B) upgrades,  to handle the increased frequency of trains   







VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Extension


 10 - miles


 2 stations


 Opening late 2019 
(per VTA)


 Phase I - $2.4B Project


 6 - miles


 4 Stations


 Yard Facility (200-car 
storage


Opening 2026 (per VTA)


 Phase II - $4.7B Project



Presenter

Presentation Notes

10-mile Extension from WSXTwo Stations: Milpitas and BerryessaOpening year ridership forecast 23,000 trips4,800 parking spacesEstimated Revenue Service late 2019 







19


VTA Performance & Control BART Performance & Control


6 months
*Contingent on punch list items*







Questions?





		Measure RR Equity Program and Small Business Update

		Economic Opportunity Programs

		Measure RR Update – Project Status�

		Measure RR Update– Small Business�

		Target Areas for Business Growth

		Presenters

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Agenda

		Facts & Figures

		Measure RR Update: �Safe Station Access & Crowd Relief

		Train Control Modernization Project (TCMP) Update

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Questions?






 
  


Surveillance Use Policy 
BART Research  
Data collection & usage for research and 
learning 


BART Research  
OEA-BMRDDCU-SUP-06 


21 Day BART Board Notice – Feb. 7, 2019  
15 Day Public Notice – Feb. 13, 2019  


BART Board Meeting – Mar. 14, 2019 







Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 2 of 4 
 


This report covers a range of current and future research methodologies that may fall under the District 
Surveillance Ordinance. Participation in BART surveys, focus groups, or other research conducted by BART that 
make use of PII (Personally Identifiable Information) is strictly voluntary, and any locational information collected 
is used for research purposes only. 
 
 


A. Purpose 
This section should include: The purpose(s) that the surveillance technology is intended to advance.  


 
BART conducts research for a variety of purposes, such as to: 


 
 Provide market information and metrics to help inform District decisions related to strategic planning, budget 


priorities, station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas. 
 Gather insight into latent demand, usage of TNCs and other emerging travel modes, and understand impact on 


public transit usage. 
 Understand effectiveness of marketing initiatives by analyzing riders’ aggregate travel behavior changes over 


time. 
 Identify reasons for change in ridership patterns. 


 
Methodologies using electronic and/or mobile data collection may be used to facilitate the following: 
 


 Faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter survey results. 
 Expanded research capabilities using real time and location-based mobile technologies.  
 “In the moment” ratings of BART facilities to improve rating accuracy, and image data that helps explain the 


reasons for ratings. 
 The use of research panels to detect changes in travel patterns over time. 
 Analysis of Bay Area residents’ travel behavior, e.g., trip purposes, travel modes, travel mode shifts, vehicle 


occupancies, changes in car ownership habits, as well as demographics (for both riders and non-riders). 
 
 


B. Authorized Use 
This section should include: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes required prior to such use, and the uses that are prohibited.  
 
All survey data collected through all channels and technologies shall be used for lawful market research purposes only - 
see Section A above. Section C shows a non-exhaustive list of various information that may be collected from users who 
voluntarily participate in surveys. 
 
In soliciting respondent consent for BART research projects, BART will disclose the types of data that will be collected, the 
nature of potential uses of such data by BART and, as applicable, third party partners in research, and describe the 
mitigations taken to protect respondent privacy. This material will hereinafter be referred to as "consent statements.” 
 
 


C. Data Collection 
This section should include: The information that can be collected by the surveillance technology. 
 
Data collected for research purposes may include: 


 Names, addresses, emails, phone numbers 
 Location information, such as points where trips started and ended, the date and time that such trips started and 


ended, and travel speed 







Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 3 of 4 
 


 Trip purpose, mode of travel, or demographics 
 Images, audio recordings, or videos  
 Payment data (e.g., for fares, parking, etc.  Payment data may include serial numbers, entry/exit stations, 


timestamps, and/or fare products loaded or used.  It will not contain credit card or bank account details.)  
 Self-reported survey data 
 Incentives awarded or redeemed 


 
Any data collected in the surveys must be used and handled pursuant to this policy. Survey data shall not be used for 
personal purposes or to follow any individual or group without probable cause or a court order. Data shall not be used to 
intentionally violate anyone’s right to privacy; and shall not be used to harass, intimidate, or discriminate against any 
individual or group. 
 
Consent statements will delineate the data to be collected, their potential uses and BART/Research Partner mitigations to 
protect respondent privacy, and will be disclosed in BART’s Annual Surveillance Report.  
 
 


D. Data Access 
This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rules and processes required 
prior to access or use of the information.  
 


 Access to survey data collected through any method described in Section A is limited to BART Research staff and 
the department manager. 


 If BART partners with another agency, e.g., MTC’s Travel Survey, access to the data may be limited by the 
standards and policies of the partner agency.  


 Cloud-based research platforms that BART use have access to research data. Security aspects of research software 
are subject to review by the OCIO to protect data security.  


 
 


E. Data Protection 
This section should include: The safeguards that protect information from unauthorized access, including encryption and access control mechanisms.  
 


 BART’s computer systems will be properly secured and maintained, including ensuring that security patches, 
upgrades, and anti-virus updates are applied as appropriate. 


 Any files containing PII will be stored on secure BART computers and will not be stored in an unencrypted format 
on any portable media. 


 Qualtrics, the current online survey software used by BART, deploys their own security and privacy policy to 
protect customer data. 


 
 


F. Data Retention 
This section should include: The time period, if any, for which information collected by the surveillance technology will be routinely retained, the 
reason such retention is regularly deleted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must be met to retain information beyond that 
period.  
 


 Research data may be retained on District computers for as long as the data are required for research, learning, 
and ridership development. 


o Going back to previous surveys may help BART understand if travel behavior has changed due to 
extraneous factors, e.g., housing crisis, employment shifts, gasoline price changes, etc. The ability to 
recontact past respondents can help track trends over time. 


 Online survey platforms may retain data for the duration of their agreements with the District. 







Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 4 of 4 
 


o Upon termination of services, survey platforms will retain data for a short amount of time to allow 
download of data. 
 
 


G. Public Access 
This section should include: How collected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal defendants.  
 
Requests for information under the California Public Records Act should be filed with the Office of the District Secretary. 
Email records@bart.gov. Phone (510) 464-6080, Fax (510) 464-6011. Mail Public Records Request c/o District Secretary 
BART 300 Lakeside Drive 23rd Floor Oakland, CA 94612.  
 
PII will not be disclosed unless such disclosure is required by law or court order. 
 
 


H. Third Party Data Sharing 
This section should include: If and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information, including any required 
justification or legal standard necessary to do so and any obligations imposed on the recipient of the information.  
 
BART research data will not be shared with any third party unless such disclosure is required by law or court order, or if 
shared under an agreement that ensures that the requirements of this document are met.  For example, BART may transfer 
selected data to consulting firms or governmental organizations to use for travel modeling or environmental impact 
assessment, providing that data handling and security requirements are met.  In cases such as these, where data at the 
individual record level are required for analysis, the third party will be required to either be under contract with BART, or 
bound by a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) with BART.  Such contracts and NDAs will require adherence to provisions 
of this Surveillance Use Policy and associated Surveillance Impact Report. 
 
In other cases, BART may help fund or participate in market research projects where other agencies or organizations lead 
the data collection effort and therefore BART is not able to fully control the wording of the respondent consent statement 
or other aspects of the project.  In such cases, BART will make best efforts to have the third party conform with the 
provisions of this Policy, and BART will disclose the consent statement wording in its Annual Surveillance Report. 
 
 


I. Training 
This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individual authorized to use the surveillance technology or to access 
information collected by the surveillance technology.  
 
Access to confidential data is tightly limited, and authorized users are provided with adequate guidance to implement this 
policy. BART will appoint a staff person to train research staff, including proper use of consent statements, NDAs, and 
secure storage of data. 
 
 


J. Auditing and Oversight 
This section should include: The mechanisms to ensure that the Surveillance Use Policy is followed, including internal personnel assigned to ensure 
compliance with the policy, internal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to information collected by the technology, technical 
measures to monitor for misuse, any independent person or entity with oversight authority.  
 
BART Research will assign a staff person to monitor compliance with the provisions covered in this document, as well as 
reporting via the District’s “Surveillance Annual Report.”  







 


    


Surveillance Impact Report 
BART Research 
Data collection & usage for research and learning 


BART Research 
OEA-BMRDDCU-SIR-06 


21 Day BART Board Notice – Feb. 7, 2019  
15 Day Public Notice – Feb. 13, 2019  


BART Board Meeting – Mar. 14, 2019 
 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 2 of 6 
 


This report covers a range of current and future research methodologies that may fall under the District Surveillance 
Ordinance. Participation in BART surveys, focus groups, or other research conducted by BART that make use of PII 
(Personally Identifiable Information) is strictly voluntary, and any locational information collected is used for research 
purposes only. 


 
A. Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and how it 


generally works. 
 


1. Research panels: BART invites randomly selected customers to opt-in / volunteer to participate in future research 
and keeps contact information on file (e.g., email addresses or phone numbers) to contact those individuals in 
the future. After a customer has volunteered to participate in research, they can opt-out at any time. 
 


2. App-based research: BART may occasionally recruit people to participate in app-based surveys such as travel 
diaries that use Location Services to automatically trigger survey invitations and/or to collect respondent trip data. 
This may be done by BART alone, in partnership with other regional agencies such as the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC), and/or by a research supplier selected by the District. Tracking of respondent 
location is only done with the respondent’s permission prior to any location tracking. 
 
Types of trip data automatically collected in an app can include location, speed, and time. Participants may also 
be invited to answer standard survey questions such as trip purpose, travel modes used, mode they would have 
used if usual mode is not available, satisfaction ratings, as well as demographics.  
 
With some surveys, locational data may also be used to trigger survey questions that are specific to the location 
a respondent is traversing. For example, locational data could be used to invite respondents to provide “in the 
moment” ratings of the cleanliness of a particular station while they are walking through it.  This can enhance 
the accuracy of their ratings. 
 


3. Collecting information through payment media: BART may analyze ridership or payment data, e.g., from BART 
tickets or Clipper cards, for research purposes. For example, BART may request ticket or Clipper serial numbers 
from respondents in order to analyze rider travel patterns or to measure the effectiveness of District initiatives 
(see example on the next page).  (Note that payment data may include serial numbers, entry/exit stations, 
timestamps, and/or fare products loaded or used.  It will not contain credit card or bank account details.)    







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 3 of 6 
 


      


 
4. IP / Location Stamps: Software used by BART to administer surveys may collect respondents’ IP (Internet Protocol) 


address and/or Location Data at the time of taking survey. All surveys taken using Qualtrics (which is the current 
online survey platform that BART uses) automatically collect these data when a survey is taken. Survey methods 
include: 


 Online surveys 
 Embedding survey link in website 
 Pop-up intercept surveys 
 QR code surveys 
 App surveys 
 SMS surveys 
 Other survey methods that BART may adapt in the future  


QUESTION 1 (Clipper Example) 
 
BART is studying travel patterns of riders and their usage of Clipper cards*. We are offering a $5 
Amazon.com gift card to the first 200 riders who agree to participate in the study and provide us with their 
valid Clipper card number. 
 
 
Are you willing to participate by providing your Clipper card ID number?  
Yes 
No 
 
*BART Research will access a limited amount of Clipper data (for up to 18 months of Clipper card use, including entry/exit 
BART station, entry/exit date and time, and fares paid) for those who answer "Yes". These data will not include any 
personal financial information (e.g., credit card or bank account details).  The data will be used solely for market research 
purposes and aggregated for reporting.  Personal travel data will not be reported publicly and will not be sold or traded for 
any purpose.  
  
BART uses security measures to protect against unauthorized access, alteration, disclosure or destruction of customers’ 
personal information. 
 


QUESTION 2 [administered to those who answer “Yes” in Question1] 
 
Please enter the Clipper Card ID number* in the box below to receive a $5 Amazon.com gift card**.


  


*Fine print: By entering your Clipper number, you agree to allow BART Research to access a limited amount of Clipper data 
on your BART trips for up to 18 months (entry/exit station, entry/exit date and time, and fares paid ). These data will not 
include any personal financial information (e.g., credit card or bank account details). The data will be used solely for market 
research purposes and aggregated for reporting.  Personal travel data will not be reported publicly and will not be sold or 
traded for any purpose.  







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 4 of 6 
 


Currently IP and/or location data are deleted in BART’s files, but these data may be used in the future for data 
validation or quality control purposes. For example, for “in the moment” ratings of cleanliness inside BART 
stations, BART could check location data to see if it matches locations reported by survey respondents.  


 
5. Collecting image data: In some research, BART may utilize image data.  For example, BART could ask survey 


respondents to take pictures or videos to document the reason behind a low cleanliness rating. Also, BART may 
use audio and/or video recording to record focus group or in-person interviews as a resource to use when 
preparing a report afterwards or for quality control purposes. In these cases, participants are always clearly 
informed at the start of a session and can opt-out if they are not comfortable with being recorded.  


 
6. Utilizing third party research data: BART may obtain research data from third parties for research purposes. For 


example, other organizations may provide BART with data, or BART may purchase data, to study travel markets 
or predict ridership on future extensions or connections to BART.  Such data is subject to the policies of the 
organization providing the data. 


 
All data collected via the methods described in this section (Section A) are subject to the “Surveillance Use Policy,” 
submitted with this “Surveillance Impact Report.” 


 


B. Information on the proposed purpose(s) for the surveillance technology. 
 


The research techniques discussed above serve the following purposes: 
 


 Provide market information and metrics to help inform District decisions related to strategic planning, budget 
priorities, station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas. 


 Facilitate faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter survey results. 
 Expand research capabilities using real time and location-based mobile technologies.  
 Facilitate “in the moment” ratings of BART facilities to improve rating accuracy, and image data that help explain 


the reasons for ratings. 
 Facilitate the study of nonrider travel patterns. 
 Facilitate use of research panels to detect changes in travel patterns over time. 


 
 


C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed. 
 
N/A 


 
 


D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the equipment is used to deter or 
detect crime. 


 
N/A 


 
 
 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 5 of 6 
 


E. An assessment identifying any potential impact on privacy rights and 
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public. 


 
BART has received the following statement from a privacy advocacy organization regarding this Impact Report: 


“In 2013, Edward Snowden and other data experts introduced to the general public the concept of ‘meta data,’ 
individual data points such as phone number called and time of day. Using a simple homemade app that captured 
only these data points (and never the content of the phone calls), Stanford lawyer and computer scientist Jonathan 
Mayer was able to accurately identify 80% of the volunteers in his study, using only open source databases such as 
Yelp, Facebook, and Google. Among the many individuals he identified, he successfully identified a woman that had 
an abortion, another woman that had cancer, and a man collecting guns and growing marijuana in his home. 


Today, data scientists can accurately identify over 95% of individuals based solely on 4 geospatial (time, location) 
data points. Human are creatures of habit, typically driving the same way to work, our house of worship, and our 
neighborhood grocery store. Current attempts to ‘de-identify’ or anonymize data are insufficient, due to modern day 
computing power and the sheer collection of data points available from public and private sources.” 


In recognition of these concerns, BART has taken the following steps to mitigate any perceived risk inherent in 
collecting these data from its customers, including but not limited to: 


1. Limiting use to market research 
2. Restricting third party access 
3. Restricting BART employee access to a select few 
4. Retaining data only as long as necessary 
5. Fully informing potential participants prior to seeking their consent 


BART takes precautions to ensure that PII (Personally Identifiable Information) is protected from inadvertent public 
disclosure. Precautions include: 
 Providing BART survey respondents with opt-in and opt-out capabilities to ensure that participation is strictly 


voluntary; 
 Storing survey data in a protected directory only available to the research team and the OCIO; and 
 Aggregating and summarizing research information related to names, addresses, emails, Clipper serial numbers, 


or locational data, or stripping data of PII (including blurring image data to protect privacy), prior to public release.  
 


PII will not be disclosed to the public unless such disclosure is required by law or court order. 
 


BART research is subject to BART’s Surveillance Technology Ordinance and a specific Surveillance Use Policy that has 
been publicly noticed and presented to the BART Board for approval. 


 
 


F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial purchase, 
personnel and other ongoing costs, and any current or potential sources of 
funding. 
 
Staff and direct costs associated with the types of research discussed in this application vary over time. Current costs 
include approximately $90,000 in staff time and approximately $30,000 in annual fees for online survey software. 
BART is considering working with MTC on a household travel survey project that will employ locational data. The cost 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 6 of 6 
 


to BART to increase sample sizes in the BART service area, and to revise the survey as needed, is expected to be under 
$100,000.  
 


 


G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data gathered 
by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party vendor on an 
ongoing basis. 
 
Some BART research data will be handled and stored by a third party, e.g., when using cloud-based survey software 
for online surveys.  See Surveillance Use Policy for specifics.  


 
 


H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a new 
technology or not) considered before deciding to use the proposed 
surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits associated with 
each alternative and an explanation of the reasons why each alternative is 
inadequate or undesirable. 
 
Adaption of new research technology is expected to increase speed and accuracy of data collection/reporting while 
reducing cost. BART uses survey technologies to improve survey accuracy, expand reach, and reduce reliance on paper 
and staff time. There are no known alternative methods that achieve these objectives.  
 
For example, travel diary participants could be asked to manually fill out complex and lengthy forms to record all trips 
taken by members of their household during a given week. However, the forms would be quite burdensome, and 
respondents may fail to recall some of the trips they took or may leave out other important information.  
 
Another example: Instead of establishing random on-line research panels, BART could conduct more surveys on-board 
trains. But the on-board surveys are much more expensive and time consuming. While the on-board surveys provide 
accurate information about the on-board passenger experience, ratings of stations can be subject to memory lapse, 
and it doesn’t facilitate the study of changes in passenger travel patterns over time. 


 
 


I. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law enforcement 
entities have had with the proposed technology, including information 
about the effectiveness, any known adverse information about the 
technology such as unanticipated costs, failures, civil rights or civil liberties 
issues. 


 
BART is not aware of any such adverse impacts of the research methodologies outlined in this report. 








Overview of 
the CASA 
Compact


February 2019







CASA is a panel of Bay Area leaders across multiple sectors convened by 
MTC and ABAG in 2017 to identify and unify behind bold, game-changing 
strategies that address the region’s housing crisis.  







 -


 25,000


 50,000


 75,000


 100,000


 125,000


 150,000


 175,000


 200,000


Alameda Contra Costa Marin Napa San Francisco San Mateo Santa Clara Solano Sonoma


4:1
5:1


20:1 17:1


13:1


8:1


5:1


12:1


17:1


Ratio
# Jobs Added : # Housing Permitted


3







83,942


41,316


89,242


23,433
11,732


87,933


161,690


95,030


216,250


0


50,000


100,000


150,000


200,000


250,000


Low-Income Moderate-Income High-Income


2007-14 Housing Need (RHNA)


2007-14 Housing Production


2010-15 Job Growth


4







The Bay Area faces a housing crisis 
because we have failed at three 
tasks: 
• Failed to produce enough housing 


for residents of all income levels
• Failed to preserve existing 


affordable housing
• Failed to protect current residents 


from displacement


5







Leslye Corsiglia 
Silicon Valley @ 
Home CEO


Fred Blackwell
San Francisco 
Foundation CEO


Mike Covarrubias
TMG Partners 


Private 
Developer


Affordable 
Housing Philanthropy


Steve Heminger 
MTC/ABAG 
Executive Director


Public Agency


6







Three
Co-Chairs


Steering
Committee


18 members


Technical 
Committee


32 members


Production Protection Preservation


Work Groups


7


CBO 
Outreach


Local 
Jurisdiction 


Outreach


7







Components of Compact 


• Elements 1, 2 & 3: Protection
• Element 4: Remove Barriers to ADUs
• Elements 5, 6 & 7: Production Initiatives
• Element 8: Surplus Public Land
• Element 9: Potential Funding Sources 
• Element 10: Regional Housing Enterprise


8


8


CASA COMPACT 


An Emergency Policy Package 
to Confront the Housing Crisis 
in the San Francisco Bay Area 


December 2018 







• Ensure Bay Area tenants are protected 
from arbitrary evictions by adopting 
region-wide requirement landlords cite 
specific "just causes" (fault and no-fault) 
for evictions, e.g. failure to pay rent, 
violating lease. 


9


9







• Establish Bay Area-wide emergency rent cap that limits annual rent 
increases to reasonable amount in order to decrease number of 
households at risk of displacement and to prevent homelessness. 


• For emergency period (15 years), CPI+5% in any one year with 
certain exemptions and banking provision. 


10


10







• For low-income tenants facing eviction: access to free legal counsel and 
emergency rent assistance for tenants with an urgent, temporary 
financial gap. 


• Regional Housing Enterprise (Element #10) would establish policy 
guidelines and provide funding for programs. 


11


11







• Extend current Bay Area best practices on 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) and Junior 
ADUs to all jurisdictions in the region. 


• Allow an ADU and a Junior ADU on single 
family lots and multiple ADUs in existing 
multi-family buildings with ministerial 
approval.


• Require impact fees for ADUs and tiny 
homes be charged on a per-square foot 
basis and only on net new living area 
above 500 sq. ft.


12


12







• Establish minimum zoning for housing in neighborhoods with:
High quality bus service – within ½ mile of stop, allow up to 36 ft.
Major transit stop (rail and ferry stations) – within ¼ mile, allow up to 55 ft.


• Make housing an eligible use on large, commercially-zoned parcels near job 
centers and in areas served by high quality transit.


• Retain local development standards such as setbacks, unit sizes and lot 
coverage if feasible with heights allowances above.


• For “sensitive communities” in or adjacent to a major transit stop, defer 
height increases above 36 ft. until jurisdiction develops community plan.


13


13







• Upzoning in Sensitive Community 
Areas (outlined in red) within ¼-mile 
of Major Transit Stop (rail/ferry) is 
limited to 36’ for up to five years. 


• High quality bus service areas are 
shown in orange and limited to East 
Bay, San Jose and S.F.


14







• Establish ‘good government’ standards for entitlement and permitting 
of zoning-compliant residential projects, including but not limited to:


- Require local jurisdictions to create and maintain in publicly 
accessible format all rules, codes and standards that apply 
residential applications, including how an application is deemed 
complete. 


- Rules, fees and historic designation are set at the date of a                               
an application’s completeness.


- For zoning-compliant residential projects, no more than three 
de novo public hearings should be required.


15


15







• Accelerate approval of zoning-compliant projects that provide on-site 
affordability for “missing middle” (restrict >20% units to 80-150% AMI), 
pay prevailing wage and use apprentice labor. 


• Incentives offered to offset higher costs to developer: 
• 15 years of property tax increment abatement, modeled on NYC program, aimed 


at missing middle housing
• Impact fees capped at a reasonable level  
• Density bonus of 35%
• Parking minimums reduced to 50% of local requirement  
• Relief from strict liability standards for ownership 


16


16







• Promote increased utilization of 
public land for affordable 
housing through variety of 
legislative and regulatory 
changes, as well as the creation 
of new regional coordination 
and planning functions.


17


17







• Raise $1.5 billion/year in new revenue from a 
broad range of sources, including property 
owners, developers, employers, local 
governments and the taxpayers, to fund 
implementation of the CASA Compact. 


18


18







Annual Funding Gap Estimate for CASA Initiatives: $2.5 billion


Production – Lower-Income Subsidized Housing


Avg. funding gap $150,000 / unit


Annual CASA target 14,000 units


Annual Funding Gap for Production $2.1 billion


Preservation – Market-Rate and Subsidized Affordable Housing


Avg. funding gap $100,000 / unit


Annual CASA target (over 8 years) 3,750 units


Annual Funding Gap for Preservation $375 million


Protection – Access to Legal Counsel, Emergency Rental Assistance


Avg. number of households protected/year 24,000


Annual Funding Gap for Protection $50 million


19







Employers


$200 million
0.1%-0.75%


Gross Receipts Tax
variable rates based on 


sector and firm size


$200 million
Variable Commercial 


Linkage Fee
($5-$20 per sq. ft.)
on new construction 


with rate varied 
depending on location 


to incentivize infill 
development


Developers Local 
Governments


$200 million
25 percent


Redevelopment 
Revenue Set-Aside 


for affordable housing 
in TPAs (including 


portion for schools and 
special districts)


Potential New Sources of Revenue
Target: $1.5 billion per year


Menu of Funding Sources to Implement the Compact


Taxpayers


$400 million
1/4-cent 


Regionwide Sales Tax


Property Owners


$100 million
1 percent


Vacant Homes Tax
on the assessed value 


of vacant home


Philanthropy


Chan-Zuckerberg-
SF Foundation Initiative


Policy and 
Infrastructure Funds


20


$100 million
$48 per year


Regionwide Parcel Tax


$200 million
Flat Commercial 


Linkage Fee
($10 per sq. ft)


on new construction


$100 million
20 percent


Revenue Sharing 
Contribution 


from future property tax 
growth


$200 million
$40-120 per job 


Head Tax
variable rates based on 
number of employees, 
jobs-housing ratio and 


transit access


$100 million
5-Yr. Term 


General Obligation 
Bonds


issued by a regional 
housing enterprise, 
renewed every five 


years







Affordable Housing Production min. 60 percent
Grants and financing. Priority to projects in Transit-Priority Areas (TPAs) 
and High-Opportunity Areas (HOAs). Construction training programs. 
Land lease/acquisition/disposition program.


Local Jurisdiction Incentives up to 10 percent
Partial payments to local jurisdictions to make up for lost revenue due to 
proposed cap on impact fees. Other incentives.


Tenant Protection Services up to 10 percent
Administered by a non-profit entity. Short-term rental assistance and 
access to legal counsel for low- and moderate-income households.


Proposed Allocation of New Revenue Raised by CASA 


Distribution of New Sources of Funding to Implement the Compact


Affordable Housing Preservation up to 20 percent
Grants and financing for acquisition and rehab and “expiring” units. 
Priority to projects in low-income neighborhoods facing displacement. 


21







o 75 percent spent w/in county of origin
o 25 percent to regional program for revenue-sharing
o Subject to performance/policy outcomes


Return to Source Proposal


County of Origin
75 percent


Regional
Revenue-Sharing


25 percent


Local Jurisdiction Incentives 10%


Affordable Housing Production 60%


Affordable Housing Preservation 20%


Tenant Protection Services 10%


22


Distribution of New Sources of Funding to Implement the Compact







• Establish a regional leadership entity to fund affordable housing and all 
elements of the CASA Compact, track and report progress, and provide 
incentives and technical assistance to local government. 


• It would not have direct land use/zoning authority or play a 
regulatory/enforcement role.


23


23







Regional Housing Enterprise


o Independent board w/ representation from MTC, ABAG 
and key stakeholders


o Supported by MTC/ABAG consolidated staff (with additions in 
specialized areas such as debt issuance, land leasing, etc.)


Regional Housing Enterprise Governance


Revenue 
Administration


and Debt 
Issuance


Land Leasing 
and Disposition


Legislative 
Reform and
Advocacy


Enhanced 
Technical 
Assistance


Regional Housing Enterprise Roles


Data, Research
and Technical


Assistance


RHNA 
and PBA


Transportation
Conditioning,
OBAG, TOAH,


NOAH, HIP


MTC/ABAG Current Roles and Responsibilities


24


Racial
Equity


Monitoring and
Reporting







• Redevelopment 2.0
• Lower Vote Threshold for Housing Funding Measures to 55%
• Address Fiscalization of Land Use (e-commerce and property tax 


allocation reforms)
• Homelessness 
• Grow and Stabilize the Construction Labor Force 


25







2018


CASA
Development


2019


Legislative
Package


2020


Election #1
Presidential


2021


PBA/RHNA
Adoption


2022


Election #2
Gubernatorial


CASA Work Windows


26







• What does the Compact get right?
• Are there concepts critical to solving the housing crisis that are missing? 
• What revenue options do you prefer? 
• What concerns do you have? 


27





		Slide Number 1

		What is CASA? �

		Job Growth Far Surpassed New Housing from 2010 to 2016�

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		CASA LEADERSHIP TEAM 

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Element #1: Just Cause Eviction Policy�

		Element #2: Rent Cap�

		Element #3: Rent Assistance and Access to Legal Counsel�

		Element #4: Remove Regulatory Barriers to Accessory dwelling units (ADUs)�

		Element #5: Minimum Zoning near Transit�

		Slide Number 14

		Element #6: Good Government REFORMs to Housing Approval Process�

		Element #7: Expedited Approvals and Financial Incentives for “Missing Middle”�

		Element #8: Unlock Public Land for Housing�

		Element #9: Funding to Finance the Compact�

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20

		Slide Number 21

		Slide Number 22

		Element #10: Regional Housing Enterprise

		Slide Number 24

		Calls to action

		Slide Number 26

		Questions/discussion






Long-Range Regional 
Planning Update
Presentation on Horizon & Plan Bay Area 2050
Ken Kirkey, MTC/ABAG Planning Director 
March 14, 2019 – BART Board Meeting


1


I 







What is a Regional Plan?


Establishes a 
long-range 


regional vision 
across multiple 


topic areas


Identifies 
local and 
regional 


strategies


Meets 
federal & 


state 
requirements


2Overview


• The regional plan is a blueprint for growth 
and infrastructure for the next 30 years.


• The regional plan is updated every four 
years, with this major update due in 2021.


• The regional plan is a reflection of the 
shared priorities of the diverse nine-
county San Francisco Bay Area.


• The regional plan is fiscally-constrained, 
even as it aspires to tackle the Bay Area’s 
big challenges with specific strategies.


• The regional plan is not an expenditure 
plan; it is focused on setting priorities and 
over the long term and looking holistically 
across “silos”.







3


Spring 2015 to 
July 2017


February 2018 to 
September 2019


August 2019 to 
June 2021


High-performing strategies and projects from Horizon – those that 
are resilient to uncertainties – will be recommended for inclusion 


in the Preferred Plan Bay Area 2050 (RTP/SCS).
Overview







4


Transportation


Land Use


Economic 
Development


Resilience


NEW


NEW


What Topic Areas Do These Efforts Tackle?
Horizon and Plan Bay Area 2050 
are addressing four core topic 
areas, as we work to create a 
long-range integrated regional 
vision for the next 30 years.







Schedule for Horizon/Plan Bay Area 2050


2018 2019 2020


Horizon


Outreach


Horizon Plan Bay Area 2050 (RTP/SCS)


Performance ID guiding 
principles


Evaluate projects 
using futures


MARCH 2019


Plan Bay Area 2050 (RTP/SCS)


2021


Futures Define futures Craft preferred 
scenario


Develop EIR + develop 
Plan Document


Policy Develop perspective papers
(released on a rolling basis)


Develop 
implementation plan


5


Code 
projects


Round 1 
analysis


Round 2 
analysis


Finalize 
models


Overview







Why Might Horizon & Plan Bay Area 2050 
Matter to BART?


6Overview


We’re exploring how autonomous 
vehicles, changing fuel prices, 
and new investments might 
affect ridership on our transit 
systems.


We’re looking at different land 
use patterns – based on changing 
preferences for where to live 
and work – that might affect 
demand for systems like BART.


We’re looking at potential policies 
to address the region’s jobs-
housing imbalance – and how 
effective they might be in terms of 
reducing vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT).


We’re exploring what strategies are 
needed to rebuild our 
infrastructure – including elevated 
BART tracks - after a major natural 
disaster (e.g., earthquake).







The Horizon initiative is designed to identify strategies and 
investments to prepare the Bay Area for an uncertain future -
to ensure we are resilient to ever-changing economic, political, 
technological, and environmental conditions.


7







What’s Happening with Horizon?


8


Outreach Perspective 
Papers


Futures Project 
Performance







Guiding Principles


9


AFFORDABLE All Bay Area residents and workers have sufficient housing options they can
afford – households are economically secure.


CONNECTED
An expanded, well-functioning transportation system connects the Bay Area –
fast, frequent and efficient intercity trips are complemented by a suite of
local transportation options, connecting communities and creating a cohesive
region.


DIVERSE
The Bay Area is an inclusive region where people from all backgrounds,
abilities, and ages can remain in place – with access to the region’s assets and
resources.


HEALTHY
The region’s natural resources, open space, clean water and clean air are
conserved – the region actively reduces its environmental footprint and
protects residents from environmental impacts.


VIBRANT The Bay Area region is an innovation leader, creating quality job opportunities
for all and ample fiscal resources for communities.


Icons Credit: The Noun Project


The San Francisco Bay Area 
aspires to be:







Perspective Papers Overview


10What’s Happening with Horizon?


1) Autonomous Vehicles 2) Toward a Shared Future 3) Growth Strategies 4) Crossings


5) The Future of Jobs 6) Governance 7) Sea Level Rise


Priority strategies from 
Horizon will be considered 
for inclusion in Plan Bay 
Area 2050 – starting in 


September 2019.







Futures Overview


11What’s Happening with Horizon?


What if... new technologies and 
a national carbon tax enabled 
greater telecommuting and 
distributed job centers?


What if... the federal government 
cuts spending and reduces 
regulations, leaving more policy 
decisions to states and regions?


What if... an economic boom and 
new transportation options spur a 
new wave of development?


Report outlining Opportunities & 
Challenges now available at:


mtc.ca.gov/horizon







Transformative Projects


500+


12


big ideas to improve
Bay Area transportation


12







Public Workshops
Oakland


3/12/19 – 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM


San Jose
3/14/19 – 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM


Petaluma
3/16/19 – 10:00 AM to 12:00 PM


San Bruno
3/19/19 – 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM


Vallejo
3/20/19 – 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM


Online Outreach
vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/horizon


Get Involved Planning
the Region’s Future!







How Will Horizon Be Integrated 
Into Plan Bay Area 2050?


14


The purpose of Horizon is to identify 
strategies and projects that perform well 
under a wide range of conditions – and to 
prioritize these resilient strategies in the 
fiscally-constrained Plan Bay Area 2050.


Potential 
Strategies


Perspective 
Papers + Public 


Outreach


Identify High-
Performing 
Strategies


Futures 
Planning + 


Project 
Performance


Integrate 
into 


Preferred 
Plan


Fall 2019 &
Winter 2020







How Can BART Participate in 
Plan Bay Area 2050?


15


Submit all remaining 
capacity-increasing 
BART projects to the 


Request for Regionally-
Significant Projects by 


June 2019 (board action 
required in July).


Continue collaboration 
on strategy 


prioritization work for 
Horizon as well as the 
development of the 


Preferred Plan – for all 
four topic areas.


Work with regional & 
local partners starting 
in 2021 on ultimate 


implementation of Plan 
Bay Area 2050 - to 


achieve shared goals.







Questions? Comments?


Ken Kirkey – kkirkey@bayareametro.gov
MTC/ABAG Planning Director 


Dave Vautin – dvautin@bayareametro.gov
Horizon/Plan Bay Area 2050 Project Manager


16


PLAN BAY AREA 2050 





		Long-Range Regional Planning Update

		What is a Regional Plan?

		Slide Number 3

		What Topic Areas Do These Efforts Tackle?

		Schedule for Horizon/Plan Bay Area 2050

		Why Might Horizon & Plan Bay Area 2050 Matter to BART?

		Slide Number 7

		What’s Happening with Horizon?

		                           Guiding Principles

		Perspective Papers Overview

		Futures Overview

		Transformative Projects

		Slide Number 13

		How Will Horizon Be Integrated Into Plan Bay Area 2050?

		How Can BART Participate in �Plan Bay Area 2050?

		Questions? Comments?��Ken Kirkey – kkirkey@bayareametro.gov�MTC/ABAG Planning Director ��Dave Vautin – dvautin@bayareametro.gov�Horizon/Plan Bay Area 2050 Project Manager






Quarterly Report of the 
Controller-Treasurer 
Period Ending 12/31/18


BART Board of Directors
March 14, 2019







Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


 The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to: 


 Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System 
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’s employees. CALPERS is 
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $300 billion.


 Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005. 
The Trust as of December 31, 2018.
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,
b. Benchmark 6.5%,
c. Total net assets $298.7 million and inception to date return is 6.2%,
d. Quarterly Report to the Unions


 Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees 
($15/month), 


 Life Insurance for retired employees. 


 The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers 
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded 
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual 
actuarial study.


2







3


Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits


Valuation Date Market Value of Assets Total Liability Unfunded Liability % Funded


Retirement Pension with CALPERS


Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2017 $     1,751,505,097 $     2,305,983,270 $         554,478,173 76.0%


Safety Employees 6/30/2017 $         198,776,637 $         326,419,179 $         127,642,542 60.9%


Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2018* $         305,850,000 $         587,896,000 $         282,046,000 52.0%


Other Post Employment Benefits


Life Insurance 6/30/2018* $                             - $           34,628,000 $           34,628,000 0.0%


Survivors Benefits 6/30/2017 $             7,207,000 $           34,124,000 $           26,917,000 21.1%


*Per draft report







Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


4


0.0%


20.0%


40.0%


60.0%


80.0%


100.0%


120.0%


6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017


%


F
u
n
d
e
d


Valuation Date


CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress


Miscellaneous


Safety







Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


5


0.00%


10.00%


20.00%


30.00%


40.00%


50.00%


60.00%


70.00%


6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018


Fu
nd


ed


Valuation Date


Retiree Health Benefits Plan







Accounts Payable
 Our goal is to pay 93% of our invoices within 30 days.  We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid 


as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter, the District was able to process 81.7% of all paid invoices 
within 30 days.  Of those that were not processed in 30 days, 17.0% were processed within 60 days, and 1.4% 
were processed within 90 days.  The trend depicting the past year is shown here:


6


Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


72.6%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


2018 Q 3 2018 Q 4 2019 Q 1 2019 Q 2


3.9% 4.3% 2.4%


4.1% 5.5%
5.3%


1.4%


13.2% 15.2%
12.7%


17.0%


78.8% 75.0% 79.6%
81.7%


N
um


be
r o


f V
ou


ch
er


 P
ai


d 
in


 P
er


ce
nt


Invoiced Fiscal Quarter


Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend


1-30 Days Paid Percent


31-60 Days Paid Percent


61-90 Days Paid Percent


91+Days Paid Percent







Accounts Receivable
 The time to receive reimbursement from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount 


outstanding is $26,322,000 as of December 31, 2018.


7


Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


Amount Billed A/R Grants as of 12/31/2018


 $-


 $2,000


 $4,000


 $6,000


 $8,000


 $10,000


 $12,000


 $14,000


 $16,000


01-30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days  91-120 days  121+ days


UC, $10,137 


VTA, $3,368 


VTA, $1,649 


CCTA, $2,748


CCTA, $1,057 


SFMTA, $902 


SFMTA, $2,613 


ACTC, $23 


ACTC, $689 


ACTC, $185 


ACTC, $152 


CALEMA, $847 


MTC, $721 


MTC, $118 


OTH, $551 


OTH, $350


OTH, $90 


OTH, $3 


OTH, $119 


TO
TA


L 
O


U
TS


TA
N


DI
N


G 
(in


 th
ou


sa
nd


s)


$ 14,306


$ 7,087


$ 2,884


$1,726


$2,042


$ 3







3. DISTRICT FINANCES
The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero.  Shown below are the composition of the District’s cash and investments as of the end of the quarter.


Cash and Investments
 Total Cash in Banks: $251,839,997
 Total CD Investments:  $868,772
 Total Government Securities: $442,300,000
 Weighted average return on our Investments has been trending higher.  Current quarter’s rate of return is 2.19% compared 


to 1.92% reported in previous quarter.  The weighted average maturity (WAM) of our Investment portfolio is 112.1 days.
 Pie chart showing the difference in cash, CD investments and government securities


8


Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


Government Securities:


• FFCB
• IBRD
• UST


$251,839,997 


$868,772 


$442,300,000 


Cash In Bank


CD Investments


Government Securities







Debt
 The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:


1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt


Sales Tax Revenue Debt
 Currently outstanding debt of $506.14 million.
 Annual Debt Service $46.6 million.
 Debt Service comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State 


Department of Tax & Fee Administration.
 This directly impacts the operating budget.
General Obligation Bonds


 Measure AA
 Currently outstanding debt of $542.6 million.
 Issued $740 million of $980 million authorized by voters.
 Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2018/2019 is $5.20/$100,000 (effect. Nov. 2018)


 Measure RR 
 Currently outstanding debt of $267.0 million.
 Issued $300 million out of $3.5 billion authorized by voters.
 Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2018/2019 is $1.80/$100,000 (effect. Nov. 2018)


9


Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18







Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/18


10


Operating and Other Reserves
Unrestricted Retained Earnings (1) $               11,011,327 


Operating Reserve (2) 44,240,162 


Calamity Reserve (3) 9,000,000 


Operating Reserve West Bay Parking (4) 185,609 


Operating Reserve - Economic Uncertainty (5) 10,574,643 


Operating Reserve - Power Market Uncertainty (6) 1,456,693 


Operating Reserve - Safety & Security (7) 2,527,281 


Operating Reserve - Fiscal Stability - Pension (8) 2,527,281 


Operating Reserve - Low Carbon Fuel Standards Credits (9) 13,742,412 


Working Capital Reserve Fund (10) 70,943,850 


$             166,209,258 


(1) This is the cumulative balance of the District's earnings in the General Fund since the inception of BART.   As established by the Board
in the early 1980s, $10M  of this unrestricted earnings is to be considered as working capital reserve.


(2) Cumulative balance of operating reserves per "Financial Stability Policy" approved by the Board.
(3) This reserve was set aside in the 1960s to cover catastrophic losses associated with District property damage, public liability and


workers' compensation claims.
(4) Allocation of net revenue earned from the West Bay long term parking program to established funding for the SFO Extension cost.
(5) Operating reserve for economic uncertainty budgeted in FY 19 to offset budgeted STA revenue due to possible repeal of SB1 and to


set aside one time lump sum payment received from the new advertising contract.
(6) Amount set aside to protect the District against future energy market uncertainty.
(7) Amount set aside in FY18 for Safety and Security.
(8) Amount set aside in FY18  for pension contribution or for prefunding of pension obligations.
(9) Portion of proceeds from sale of Low Carbon Fuel Standards credits sold set aside to support operations per 


"Low Carbon Fuel Standard Policy" approved by the Board in July 2017.
(10) Working capital fund.





		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer �Period Ending 12/31/18�

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18��Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 12/31/18





